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          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Good morning,

          3  everyone. Welcome to today's hearing of the Public

          4  Safety and Consumer Affairs Committee. We are very

          5  privileged and honored to have with us today the

          6  Speaker of the City Council and I would like to turn

          7  the floor over to her for an opening.

          8                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you. First I

          9  want to thank Chairperson Vallone and Chairperson

         10  Comrie for their work on the nightlife safety issue.

         11  As I think we all know, recently there have been a

         12  number of very tragic incidents at nightlife

         13  establishments in our City. A number that have

         14  actually resulted in the death of patrons at

         15  nightlife establishments. We are very lucky, due to

         16  the great work of our New York City Police

         17  Department, to have the honor of living in the

         18  safest big City in the world. We don't clearly have

         19  the safest nightlife in the world. We can have both

         20  of those things.

         21                 The nightlife industry is a

         22  critically important part of our economy. Some say

         23  the amount of money it brings in ranges from $8- to

         24  $10 billion a year. And the vast majority of people

         25  who run these establishments are law-abiding
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          2  business people. But as with any industry, there are

          3  some bad apples. In the case of nightlife, when you

          4  have those bad apples running establishments in what

          5  may be close to a lawless manner, terrible things

          6  can happen.

          7                 So, in the Council we wanted to

          8  respond to this situation, but respond to it in a

          9  way that recognized our goal is not and will never

         10  be to shut down or shutter nightlife in the City of

         11  New York.

         12                 Towards that end, working with the

         13  Chairperson Comrie and Chairperson Vallone, we

         14  introduced the four pieces of legislation that we

         15  are going to hear today. We also knew at that point

         16  that those of us on the Council didn't have and

         17  couldn't have all the answers to this problem. We're

         18  not the New York City Police Department. We're not

         19  the State Liquor Authority and none of us own or run

         20  nightlife establishments. That's why we convened all

         21  those entities and security experts and community

         22  members at a Nightlife Security Summit at John Jay

         23  College a few weeks ago.

         24                 The point of that discussion was to

         25  see what else we, in government, on all levels,
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          2  could be doing to make nightlife safer in the City

          3  of New York. Today's four bills are the start of our

          4  legislative work on this. We've had more ideas that

          5  came out of that Summit which you will see

          6  additional work on in the future. Also out of that

          7  Summit, and there was a list of about 12 to 15

          8  things to follow up on, some of those that follow-up

          9  may yield legislation. It will all yield ongoing

         10  dialogue and discussion between government, the

         11  Nightlife Association and the nightlife industry and

         12  the various law enforcement and regulatory entities

         13  involved in this industry.

         14                 The four bills we are looking at

         15  today:  One would require ID scanners at

         16  establishment; another would require video

         17  surveillance at entry and exits in the

         18  establishment; another would require training for

         19  personnel at nightlife establishments; and a fourth

         20  would set up a monitoring system for establishments

         21  which have a history or record of bad behavior.

         22                 We think these four bills, coupled

         23  with our ongoing dialogue with the industry and with

         24  law enforcement and our efforts to bridge any gap

         25  that may have developed between the industry and law
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          2  enforcement, that all of that put together will move

          3  us to the place where people can continue to go and

          4  have fun at nightlife establishments in our City,

          5  but can do it with a greater level of safety and a

          6  greater sense of security.

          7                 In addition to thanking the Chairs, I

          8  also want to thank the members of the Nightlife

          9  Association for their work with us. We are going to

         10  move through this process of nightlife security and

         11  we may not always agree, the industry and the

         12  Council, but one thing we made a commitment on is

         13  that we will not pass a bill that regulates the

         14  nightlife industry without discussing it with the

         15  nightlife industry and without getting their input.

         16  We're not going to pass legislation in this area

         17  that would put a mandate on the Police Department

         18  without discussing it with the Police Department. It

         19  doesn't mean we are always going to agree, but it

         20  does mean that this process moving forward will be

         21  informed by the input of all of the stakeholders and

         22  all who are impacted by our effort to do greater

         23  regulation.

         24                 I just want to say in closing we

         25  might not have to do any of this if the State Liquor
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          2  Authority was doing a better job in the City of New

          3  York. They have taken some steps forward and there

          4  has been improvement in the job they are doing, but

          5  they still, in my opinion, don't take the needs of

          6  the City of New York seriously enough. That's why in

          7  addition to this, once the Legislature goes back

          8  into session in January, the Council will be pushing

          9  for legislation in Albany, that would give the City

         10  more authority and control over the State Liquor

         11  Authority regulations, enforcement and adjudication

         12  of them within the five boroughs.

         13                 Again, I want to thank the Chairs and

         14  also thank the numerous other members of the

         15  Council, in particularly Council Member Gale Brewer,

         16  Council Member Melinda Katz, Council Member Domenic

         17  Recchia and Alan Gerson and the many other members

         18  who have been working with my office and the Chairs

         19  on this issue and who participated in the Nightlife

         20  Security and Safety Summit a few weeks ago.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         22  Speaker. And I would like to thank you because as we

         23  all know, none of us are here having this hearing

         24  today without your leadership. The Nightlife Summit

         25  has already paid many dividends. I haven't spoke to
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          2  one person who had a complaint about the Summit. I

          3  think it is a great idea. I think you should convene

          4  more summits on different topics. As I said many

          5  times before, the Public Safety Committee alone has

          6  never worked so hard. And we are very thankful for

          7  that actually to have a Speaker who is so focused on

          8  the safety of the City in every area. Today, we

          9  focus on nightlife.

         10                 I would also like to thank my

         11  co-Chair Leroy Comrie who has been nothing short of

         12  a pleasure to work with on this. We spent many long

         13  hours together and he has really been helpful and

         14  also shown a great deal of leadership in this

         15  regard. As the Speaker said, we have the safest big

         16  City in the nation. We don't have the safest

         17  nightlife, yet. Today's hearing and the hearings to

         18  follow will go a long way to ensuring that we do

         19  have the safest nightlife in the country.

         20                 This proposed legislation is drafted

         21  in the wake of the incident the Speaker mentioned;

         22  the death of Imette St. Guillen and the murderous

         23  rampage of Stephen Sakai; the death of Jennifer

         24  Moore. Beyond these publicized incidents, nightlife

         25  has become increasingly riddled with problems from
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          2  underage drinking to community disturbances to

          3  personal safety problems. The New York City

          4  nightlife, whether it is dangerous or just perceived

          5  as being dangerous, that doesn't benefit anyone. It

          6  isn't good for the club, the club goers, law

          7  enforcement or the City.

          8                 Where does the responsibility lie? As

          9  the Speaker said, it is not just the club owners.

         10  Certainly some responsibility does lie with

         11  irresponsible club owners and promoters and

         12  evidenced as a recent New York Post article from

         13  September 24, where they witnessed promoters not

         14  only luring underage girls into clubs, but telling

         15  them they would meet them outside the club and get

         16  them through. In fact, the reporters watched the

         17  promoter take two young girls past the ID scanner

         18  and into the club bed.

         19                 Speaking of the Post by the way,

         20  without confirming or denying their page six report

         21  with me in it, I do want to say that I prevented

         22  Lindsay Lohan from drinking because she is under 21.

         23  Just so you know. Yes, it is a long story. Don't

         24  worry. For another time. Back to the responsibility

         25  for underage drinking. That's where we were. Some

                                                            12

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  lies with the club owners. But obviously it is not

          3  all club owners fault. The SLA has been asleep at

          4  the switch on this issue for some time regarding

          5  enforcement of the rules. Parents have a huge

          6  responsibility here. If your 16 year old daughter is

          7  not home at 4:00 in the morning, that's your fault.

          8  That's not the club owners fault. Kids themselves

          9  have a responsibility. Whether legal or illegal, if

         10  you can't handle the alcohol, there are serious

         11  consequences.

         12                 When you leave a club drunk, at worst

         13  or at best, at best you are a nuisance to the

         14  community and to others. At worst, you are a drunk

         15  driving incident waiting to happen or you are prey

         16  for some vicious criminal. We can all share

         17  responsibility here. We can all do more. And that's

         18  why we had that Summit and that's why we are all

         19  here today. I would like to now turn it over to my

         20  co- Chair, Leroy Comrie to maybe go through some of

         21  the bills we will be discussing today.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you, Chair

         23  Vallone. Thank you, Speaker Quinn. I want to not try

         24  to be repetitive and try to be focused so we can

         25  move right on to the statements. I especially want
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          2  to thank and echo the comments of Council Member

          3  Vallone. Speaker Quinn who has had been hyper-

          4  focused on these efforts to ensure that the issue of

          5  safety in New York City dance halls, bars and

          6  cabarets has received the highest level of public

          7  discourse and attention that it warrants. And the

          8  idea of the Summit has been something that has been

          9  universally received and universally accepted, I

         10  think has been a landmark in our opportunity as the

         11  Council, to further ensure that we have open

         12  communication and dialogue about issues that are

         13  important to the life and liability of the greatest

         14  City in the world.

         15                 Clearly, the nightclub

         16  establishments, the idea of New York being

         17  entertainment capital of the world, this is an area

         18  that we cannot just rule without having an

         19  opportunity to have full communication and

         20  understanding from all parties. The ability of all

         21  parties to express their desire to ensure that New

         22  York City is the Big Apple and a place that people

         23  want to come too. We need to and as Chair Vallone

         24  has said, it is because of the public problems that

         25  have happened that we want to ensure that the
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          2  perception of New York City's nightlife is the

          3  perception that people all over the world will want

          4  to continue to come here in the numbers and the

          5  magnitude that they have come and that we are

          6  working together in new and different ways to ensure

          7  that the safety level is raised.

          8                 I just want to thank also Council

          9  Member Vallone, as he said his Committee and my

         10  Committee have been, I think the two busiest

         11  committees thanks to the leadership of our Speaker.

         12  But we really enjoyed the opportunity for discourse

         13  and knowledge and information sharing so that we can

         14  make the City a better place. As usual, Speaker

         15  Quinn and Chair Vallone were so thorough, they stole

         16  most of my statement. Because they are so well verse

         17  on the topic and I don't want to be repetitive but

         18  we are going to talk about the four proposals that

         19  were discussed today.

         20                 This is our first hearing on Intros

         21  441, 442, 440 and 443. We have invited

         22  representatives of the Police Department, Consumer

         23  Affairs, Criminal Justice Coordinating, the

         24  Nightlife Association, New York City Liberties Union

         25  and as well as interested members of the public and
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          2  we look forward to hearing from all of these

          3  witnesses and staying in ongoing discussions with

          4  them to make sure that New York's record of being

          5  the safest City continues and is expanded. We plan

          6  to work together with all of those concerned, to

          7  settle on legislation that improves public safety

          8  while remaining mindful of the importance of these

          9  businesses to our local culture and as well as the

         10  need to maintain a suitable environment in which

         11  they can thrive.

         12                 Before I begin, I want to introduce

         13  the members of both Committees that are here.

         14  Minority Leader Jimmy Oddo from Staten Island;

         15  Charles Barron from Brooklyn; Eric Dilan from

         16  Brooklyn; Vincent Gentile from Brooklyn; Melinda

         17  Katz, I thought you were back there, from Queens;

         18  Gail Brewer from Manhattan and Oliver Koppell. With

         19  the Chair's indulgence, I would like to just go

         20  right over to the Administration table so that

         21  whoever would like to start the testimony could

         22  start at this time.

         23                 MS. HYMAN: Thank you. Good morning

         24  Madam Speaker, Chairman Vallone, Chairman Comrie and

         25  members of the Council. My name is Shari Hyman and I
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          2  am the Director of the Mayor's Office of Special

          3  Enforcement. I am testifying today on behalf of John

          4  Feinblatt, the City's Criminal Justice Coordinator

          5  who asked me to extend his apologies for his

          6  unavailability here today.

          7                 I am joined by Frederico Gebauer from

          8  the Mayor's Office of the Criminal Justice

          9  Coordinator; Susan Petito, Assistant Commissioner of

         10  Intergovernmental Affairs at the New York City

         11  Police Department; Deputy Chief Brian Conroy from

         12  the Police Department's Vice Enforcement Division

         13  and Andrew Eiler from the Department of Consumer

         14  Affairs. Thank you again for the opportunity to be

         15  heard on these four bills that are designed to

         16  enhance public safety.

         17                 To echo what has already been said by

         18  Madam Speaker, Chairman Vallone and Chairman Comrie,

         19  we all know two things about New York City. This is

         20  the safest big City in America, and we have the best

         21  nightlife in the world. It is our responsibility to

         22  find ways we can make the millions of New Yorkers

         23  and tourists who enjoy our nightclubs and bars even

         24  safer, and that's what we're here today to discuss.

         25  We applaud the City Council for introducing this
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          2  package of legislation. However, we have a few

          3  questions and concerns. Let me now say a few words

          4  about each bill.

          5                 First I would like to address the

          6  independent monitoring Intro Number 440. The

          7  independent monitoring bill provides DCA with the

          8  authority to require cabarets and dance halls to

          9  submit to monitoring as a condition of their

         10  licenses. Under the proposal, DCA could select a

         11  monitor after an establishment had two or more

         12  violations or one serious violation. The monitor

         13  would then oversee the operation of the cabaret or

         14  dance hall and advise them whether their current

         15  methods of operation are in compliance with the law

         16  and DCA regulations.

         17                 Independent monitors are currently a

         18  successful part of negotiated settlements in

         19  nuisance abatement cases brought by the NYPD's Civil

         20  Enforcement Unit. Independent monitors are an

         21  established and valuable enforcement tool. This bill

         22  would ensure that DCA could also use monitors to

         23  oversee cabarets and dance halls.

         24                 As drafted, however, it is unclear

         25  under what circumstances DCA could require a
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          2  licensee to submit to a monitorship. For instance,

          3  could they do so only when a licensee violated the

          4  Cabaret Law? If the Council intended that the bill

          5  be drafted to give DCA broader discretion, we should

          6  discuss this aspect of the bill further.

          7                 With respect to ID scanners, Intro

          8  Number 441, the ID Scanner Bill would require

          9  cabarets and dance halls to electronically check the

         10  ID's of all patrons who appear to be under the age

         11  of 30. We share the Council's concern about the

         12  problem of underage drinking and the desire to

         13  enhance a cabaret or dance hall's ability to combat

         14  this problem. However, under the State Alcoholic

         15  Beverage Control Law, establishments that serve

         16  alcohol are already required to check ID's for

         17  anyone who appears underage and have the option to

         18  use ID scanners. Because the ABC Law already

         19  regulates scanners, it is possible that the proposed

         20  legislation is preempted. We share your concerns

         21  about underage drinking and would be happy to

         22  continue to work with the Council to develop

         23  alternate legislative solutions.

         24                 With respect to security cameras,

         25  Intro Number 442, the security camera bill requires
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          2  video surveillance of the areas outside each

          3  entrance and exit at all cabarets and dance halls.

          4  Since the cameras will be visible and signs will

          5  alert the public to their presence, we hope and

          6  expect they will have a deterrent effect on crime.

          7  Additionally, the recordings could produce useful

          8  leads for investigators.

          9                 The use of video cameras make sense.

         10  However, we have a few suggestions that we believe

         11  would enhance this bill's success. First, the 15-

         12  day time period for storage of the videotapes seems

         13  too short. In order for law enforcement to have the

         14  time to secure the tapes, we believe a storage

         15  requirement of 45 days should be required.

         16                 Second, the bill requires that the

         17  establishment record activity around exits and

         18  entrances during hours of operation. But it is the

         19  early morning hours after closing, when patrons are

         20  lingering outside of establishments that may often

         21  be just as dangerous. Consequently, we suggest that

         22  recording be extended to a reasonable time period

         23  after closing.

         24                 Third, the bill requires DCA to

         25  evaluate the technology that an establishment owner
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          2  installs. Instead, we suggest that the owners be

          3  required to certify that the equipment meets the

          4  requirements imposed by the law and DCA will conduct

          5  periodic inspections to monitor their compliance.

          6                 With respect to the training bill,

          7  Intro Number 443, the Council's training bill

          8  requires cabaret and dance hall employees who serve

          9  alcohol or provide security to complete a DCA

         10  approved training course. Current State law already

         11  requires that security guards complete State

         12  approved training and encourages but does not

         13  mandate alcohol related training for employees at

         14  nightlife establishments. Because this bill would

         15  mandate training for employees of State licensed

         16  premises who, under State law would have the option

         17  of attending such training, it is questionable

         18  whether the City may impose such a requirement.

         19  Additionally, this bill requires employees to attend

         20  programs that are pre- approved by DCA. We ask

         21  instead, that the bill define the content of an

         22  acceptable training program.

         23                 Finally, we would like to bring up an

         24  addition to the nuisance abatement law. Another

         25  effective tool that law enforcement uses to ensure
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          2  the safety of nightlife establishments are nuisance

          3  abatement actions. These are civil lawsuits brought

          4  by the City against a building owner and tenant as a

          5  result of dangerous or illegal activity at a

          6  location; such as building with no fire escapes. If

          7  a judge determines that there is in fact a dangerous

          8  or illegal condition, she may close down the

          9  establishment until the problem is corrected. Under

         10  the current law, there are limited circumstances

         11  where nuisance abatement is available.

         12                 In an effort to expand the

         13  circumstances under which the City can bring

         14  nuisance abatement actions, the Administration will

         15  be introducing a bill to amend the City's Nuisance

         16  Abatement Law in a manner similar to what the

         17  Council has recently enacted as part of Local Law 35

         18  of 2006 (the Bouncer Bill) to address ongoing public

         19  nuisances.

         20                 Our bill will enable the court to

         21  close premises where there have been two or more

         22  crimes of murder, manslaughter, felony assault, or

         23  gang assault within one year. Additionally, the bill

         24  allows for the closing of an establishment for two

         25  or more violations of selected provisions of the
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          2  Alcoholic Beverage Control Law; specifically

          3  warehousing liquor and disorderly premises within

          4  one year.

          5                 We believe that this proposal is a

          6  reasonable mechanism for addressing chronic

          7  conditions damaging the quality of life in our

          8  neighborhoods and we hope that you will approve its

          9  passage at your earliest opportunity. In conclusion,

         10  I applaud the Council for crafting a package of

         11  legislation that seeks to make our nightlife safer

         12  and therefore even more vibrant, and I am certain

         13  that with more discussion we can accomplish just

         14  that. Thank you again for the opportunity to be

         15  heard. We would be pleased to answer any questions.

         16                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you. First,

         17  obviously you should get us a draft of your bill as

         18  soon as possible and we will take a look at it and

         19  review it and set up the appropriate levels of

         20  conversation prior to introduction so we can go

         21  through our specific thoughts on that. I would also

         22  urge you to follow the model of reaching out to the

         23  industry and the other impacted parties on this as

         24  well.

         25                 On the issue of the storage time
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          2  frame, we will certainly sit down and have

          3  conversations with you about that. We also had

          4  conversations in addition to with SLA, the PD, the

          5  Nightlife Association, with civil liberties groups

          6  that had concerns around the ID scanner which is why

          7  we were limiting them to just those that validate

          8  the validity of the license and prohibit people from

          9  keeping a list of the names. That was where the idea

         10  of limiting the time frame of how long the tapes

         11  could be held. Now we want that limitation to take

         12  into account people's civil liberties, but we also

         13  want it to be a time frame that meet public safety

         14  needs. We are happy to have ongoing conversations

         15  with all who have an opinion in that.

         16                 The preemption issue, we just

         17  disagree with you and we should continue to have

         18  conversations about that. What you state, I believe,

         19  is that the State says that people can participate

         20  in something voluntarily. I don't believe nor does

         21  our general Council that the State having a

         22  voluntary position fully occupies the field, so to

         23  speak, in a way that would prevent us from having

         24  the ability to have additional requirements of

         25  mandatory training.
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          2                 Obviously, we all are at times

          3  constrained by the State being in this field, but

          4  not being in this field in a manner that is

          5  satisfactory which is why the Council sought already

          6  to expand the requirements of the Nuisance Abatement

          7  Law in our Bouncer Control Act. We are mindful of

          8  that, but we think we have struck an appropriate

          9  balance and think your preemption concerns, once you

         10  have further conversations with our staff, will see

         11  that they are not warranted and that this is fully

         12  within our authority. I look forward to continuing

         13  those conversations and clarifying any

         14  misconceptions about the preemption issues on any of

         15  these matters.

         16                 MS. HYMAN: We look forward to that as

         17  well.

         18                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         20  Speaker. To go through your testimony, first of all

         21  thank you all for coming down. It is a very

         22  impressive panel and it is evidence of the

         23  cooperation we have had so far with all these bills

         24  and we hope to cooperate with the bill that you

         25  intend to introduce in the same manner as the
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          2  Speaker just said. Independent monitoring, you

          3  mentioned that it is a tool that you have been using

          4  already. Can you explain to us how you have been

          5  using it and what you find to be effective about it?

          6                 MS. PETITO: Susan Petito. From the

          7  Police Department's perspective, the independent

          8  monitors is an element that we use sometimes when

          9  settling a nuisance abatement action against a club

         10  or any premise where there are sustained security

         11  problems or other types of problems that we think an

         12  independent monitor would assist in. It is based on

         13  a private sector in the inspector general model. And

         14  what it is, is usually a security firm that is hired

         15  by the club or the premise to oversee the security

         16  efforts, the compliance with the nuisance abatement

         17  settlement agreement and report back to the Police

         18  Department regarding how well the club is doing and

         19  in terms of following the agreement and

         20  incorporating the new security measures which

         21  they've usually also agreed too.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Is that a firm

         23  that you have pre- approved?

         24                 MS. PETITO: No, what we do is ask the

         25  club or the premise to select a firm and then we
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          2  will approve that firm. We don't have a list of

          3  firms per say that we recommend. What we ask is that

          4  the club come to us with a proposal of a firm that

          5  they would like to use and then we will vet them.

          6  There is some firms that we have had extensive

          7  experience with and so we know that they are

          8  reliable. But we don't maintain a list.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Chair Comrie

         10  would like to know what is the threshold level for

         11  beginning this monitoring program?

         12                 MS. PETITO: It is a case by case

         13  basis based on the circumstances of the nuisance

         14  abatement action. When the Police Department brings

         15  a nuisance abatement action, it is based on

         16  particular violations and it also represents a

         17  finding at least by the court that the premise

         18  constitutes an ongoing public nuisance. That is how

         19  it comes into play. The independent monitor is a

         20  voluntary -- the use of a independent monitor is

         21  part of the voluntary settlement of a nuisance

         22  abatement action by the club or the premise and the

         23  Police Department.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It sounds like

         25  there is a broad discretion involved and that's
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          2  pretty much what we were intending to convey here

          3  with our bill. You mentioned in your testimony that

          4  it is unclear under what circumstances DCA could

          5  require a licensee to submit to monitorship and if

          6  we intended to give you broad discretion, we should

          7  discuss that. I believe that was our purpose. We did

          8  say in the bill multiple offenses or a serious

          9  offense. Do you propose a different standard or

         10  would you suggest that we leave it up to your

         11  discretion?

         12                 MS. HYMAN: We had a question about it

         13  actually because my understanding and I'll defer to

         14  Mr. Eiler on this is that the way the bill is

         15  written, the use of the independent monitor in the

         16  cabaret setting would be able to only apply to

         17  violations of the cabaret law; of the conditions of

         18  the license under which cabaret is granted a

         19  license. But the second part of the bill which

         20  requires a notification from other enforcement

         21  agencies to the DCA implies to us that you might

         22  have wanted a broader authority and in that case,

         23  the bill would have to be, I believe, redrafted to

         24  make that clear. Mr. Eiler, do you want to add

         25  anything?
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          2                 MR. EILER: I think she covered it

          3  very well. That's really the issue with respect to

          4  what exactly that requirement is intended to

          5  encompass.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. We will as

          7  usual sit down and discuss that with you. Your

          8  testimony then discussed ID scanners. We obviously

          9  agree with the Speaker. We believe we are able to

         10  move into this area. Assuming we are, if you get

         11  past the preemption argument, would you support this

         12  measure which would mandate ID scanners?

         13                 MS. HYMAN: I guess I'll take that. We

         14  like the concept, but we are very concerned again

         15  about the retention of the information. We think

         16  that the bill is properly concerned with that as

         17  well. But I think we need to talk about that further

         18  to make sure that that information is really not

         19  retained in any way.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Chair Comrie

         21  just asked me if that was a yes or a no? I believe

         22  that was a yes with qualifications?

         23                 MS. HYMAN: With further discussion.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. Security

         25  cameras, next step. I'll try to go through this

                                                            29

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  quickly because I know other Council Members have

          3  questions. Again, the Speaker discussed the

          4  retention period; 15 days you say seems too short

          5  and you suggest 45 days. In fact, the club industry

          6  which as I said, many of the responsible club owners

          7  who are here today already have security cameras and

          8  ID scanners in place. They would like to store these

          9  for at last six months for civil liability purposes

         10  which as obviously is a concern of theirs. If they

         11  get sued, they now have a camera to show whether or

         12  not somebody fell or got hurt in their club. We are

         13  going to sit down and seriously look at extending

         14  the retention period. Of course, we want to hear

         15  from people who think maybe it should be kept for a

         16  shorter period of time. You obviously support

         17  security cameras as do we.

         18                 The training bill, 443, again you

         19  raised questions as to whether or not we are

         20  preempted. Again, if we are not preempted and we

         21  don't believe we are, would you support that bill?

         22                 MS. HYMAN: I think again with some

         23  qualifications as to what the content of the

         24  training would be. That's what we would like the

         25  bill to deal with or address is the specific nature
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          2  of what you want the content of the program to be so

          3  that everybody is in accord with what each employee

          4  is required to know before they work in an

          5  establishment.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I think that's

          7  another yes with qualifications, Chair Comrie. Let

          8  me move off these bills for one brief moment and

          9  talk about the problem in general that we are trying

         10  to address to get some ideas for some future

         11  legislation that we are working on. The problem with

         12  fake ID's is obviously something that transcends New

         13  York City. Many of the ID's come from the internet.

         14  Although, many do come from New York City. Let's

         15  start with this question, right now what is the

         16  Police Department policy regarding the use or

         17  possession of a fake ID or the sale of these ID's in

         18  locations throughout New York City and what is being

         19  done about that?

         20                 MS. HYMAN: Right now, there are two

         21  different ways and we will speak about the person

         22  who is using the ID, the young person who is trying

         23  to get into the premise. There are two possible

         24  crimes that are charged. One is penal law, Section

         25  170.20 which is criminal possession of a forged

                                                            31

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  instrument in the third degree and that is A

          3  misdemeanor. The other way is for a charge of

          4  criminal impersonation. Sometimes they borrow their

          5  siblings ID. That would be criminal impersonation

          6  also an A misdemeanor penal law Section 190.25.

          7  Making a false ID, there are a couple of different

          8  penal law charges for that. Making the ID itself is

          9  forgery; second degree forgery which is a D felony.

         10  But possession of a forged instrument where you

         11  don't actually observe the making of it, but clearly

         12  it is in someone's possession is also a D felony,

         13  penal law Section 170.25.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I don't think

         15  anybody thinks that a kid trying to get into a bar

         16  possessing a false ID should be punishable with

         17  anymore time than that but you said it is an A

         18  misdemeanor. That's a year in jail and nobody is

         19  looking for that. Isn't there a requirement, I'm

         20  trying to think back to my prosecuting days that you

         21  intend to defraud somebody with that ID.

         22                 MS. HYMAN: There is. But --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So if you just

         24  possess it and you are not showing it to someone

         25  with an intent to defraud, then what is the crime?
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          2                 MS. HYMAN: Well, it is the intent, if

          3  we are speaking about the license premise, if they

          4  are using it to try to get into the license premise,

          5  they are defrauding the owner of the premise to

          6  understand that they are over 21. Under the

          7  circumstance --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Absolutely, if

          9  you use it to get into a club, it would be

         10  defrauding. But if you just possessed it, I don't

         11  believe that would be a crime under what you just

         12  quoted to me.

         13                 MS. HYMAN: No. I was speaking about

         14  in terms of getting into a club. But, yes --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That is

         16  something obviously I'm working on introducing right

         17  now a bill that would make that a crime just to

         18  possess this to make easier for law enforcement. I'm

         19  going to work with you on that. The people that are

         20  selling these, again first tell us how big you see

         21  the problem to be here in New York City with these

         22  sale of these fake ID's here within the New York

         23  City limits and what you have done to combat that.

         24                 MR. CONROY: Obviously, that is

         25  something that does exist. There are various small
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          2  establishments throughout the City where somebody

          3  could go to get ID. We have done enforcement at

          4  these locations. When we become aware, we will do an

          5  undercover operation or location to attempt buy an

          6  ID and if we do get that, then we make an arrest of

          7  the person supplying the ID. The other option, of

          8  course, is the internet. We haven't done much with

          9  that. We are looking at that now to see what we can

         10  do with that as far as people selling ID over the

         11  internet.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm glad. I've

         13  written a letter to the Secretary about that. You

         14  can go on the internet right now and google fake

         15  ID's and find any number of web sites that will say,

         16  we can give you a fake ID that will beat a scanner;

         17  that will be virtually identical to any real ID's.

         18  They advertise giving you a complete fake

         19  identification. New social security numbers,

         20  actually advertise if you want to get out of your

         21  alimony payments, we can get you a social security

         22  number, a new passport, new ID. It is outrageous

         23  that you can go on the internet and do this in this

         24  day and age. That's not your fault. That is the

         25  Homeland Security fault. This is something that
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          2  transcends the NYPD. But as usual, I would like you

          3  to set the bar for the country and attempt to do

          4  something about that. When it comes to the fake

          5  ID's, how many arrests do you make when it comes to

          6  selling these here in New York City?

          7                 MR. CONROY: I don't have the actual

          8  numbers with me. But we have at times gone after it

          9  and again if a command or individual precinct

         10  becomes aware it, they will utilize their team or

         11  whatever to make the undercover buys and make

         12  arrests.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I would like to

         14  get those numbers from you after today. When you

         15  show up at a store that has a sign that says fake

         16  ID's for sale or novelty ID's for sale, they are not

         17  obviously not advertising them as real. They are

         18  advertising them as novelty or fake. But you see

         19  that they are virtually identical to a real ID. What

         20  you can do about that?

         21                 MR. CONROY: Well, some of the

         22  problems we can encounter, again this is something

         23  that we are working on, if they post some kind of

         24  little fine print on there that says this is not

         25  real ID, then we can run into a problem with the
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          2  prosecution of that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Exactly. That's

          4  what I'm getting at. The problem is, if they put it

          5  in minuscule writing someplace, novelty or they sell

          6  it without an intent to defraud, because they are

          7  not defrauding anybody by selling it, they are

          8  selling as a fake ID to a kid who will now use it to

          9  get into a bar, you have a very serious prosecutor

         10  type problems when it comes to that.

         11                 MR. CONROY: That's true.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Again, we are

         13  looking at laws here which I have introduced or will

         14  be introducing which will outlaw novelty ID's. It is

         15  a big step, but perhaps the need for mayor of

         16  clowntown ID is no longer a reason that we need to

         17  subject ourselves to this loop hole which allows

         18  these places to sell these ID's as novelties which

         19  are then used to get past clubs that are trying to

         20  do the right thing; that are trying to sort out fake

         21  ID's and stop people from getting in. But it is

         22  impossible to tell with the naked eye whether or not

         23  these are fake. So these are things we are working

         24  on to try to make your job easier and I don't want

         25  to use too much time on this hearing going into
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          2  that. Let me now move onto Council Member Barron.

          3  First, we've been joined by Council Member Garodnick

          4  and Council Member Yassky. Thank you both for coming

          5  down.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

          7  much Mr. Chairs, for holding this hearing. You know

          8  I always become very, very concerned when we are

          9  trying to promote safety whether it is safety in our

         10  communities, at what happens to our civil liberties

         11  and I know we made some passing references to it.

         12  But bringing safety to my neighborhood in East New

         13  York means that we have to be concerned about being

         14  stopped by police every five seconds and showing ID,

         15  which violates our human rights to move about freely

         16  in our neighborhoods. Or bringing safety to New York

         17  and safety to America from terrorism means that the

         18  President signs a military commission act, which I

         19  call the disappearing act, now you can't even file

         20  for a habeas corpus to find out if you can produce a

         21  person.

         22                 When we talk about safety and comes

         23  all the law enforcement around safety, all of us are

         24  concerned about what happens at nightclubs, not just

         25  for the recent killing, but people have been dying
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          2  at nightclubs. And this didn't happen over night.

          3  I'm just concerned about this call for safety and

          4  new laws coming in. What does that really do to our

          5  civil liberties? For the clubs that are not

          6  violating anything, for the patrons that want to go

          7  to clubs and not be ID scanned and all of that. I'm

          8  all for safety. But every time I hear safety and a

          9  bunch of laws, what comes with that is violation of

         10  our human rights to move about freely and associate

         11  and violations of our constitutional civil and civil

         12  liberties.

         13                 I'm just always concerned about that

         14  and I just didn't want to brush by the civil

         15  liberties question so quickly. We need to explore

         16  that even further and once again, I'm all for

         17  safety. I just don't think law and order and extra

         18  laws and getting us caught up in the system

         19  particularly people of color who we could extremely

         20  caught up in the system that if this brings more of

         21  that and less safety, it would be a major problem

         22  for me. So if you could explore some more of the

         23  civil liberties questions on that; not only the ID

         24  scanners, whether the surveillance tapes and all

         25  that, I would like to hear a little more about that
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          2  from someone.

          3                 MS. HYMAN: Councilman, I think we've

          4  tried to be cognizant of the civil liberties

          5  implication and the bills themselves have sought to

          6  protect them, not only in the scanner but also for

          7  the security camera by limiting the retention

          8  period. We would just argue that we need a slightly

          9  longer period in order to make sure that we don't

         10  miss valuable investigative leads. But we don't

         11  think that 45 days is unreasonable. That is modeled

         12  on the time period for retention of ATM tapes under

         13  the State law. We thought that was a reasonable time

         14  frame.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: How can we

         16  assure that the patrons, their information will not

         17  be retained with the ID scanners? What is the

         18  sureties of that?

         19                 MS. HYMAN: I think as we discussed,

         20  that is something we will have to look further into.

         21  Because it is very important to us that that

         22  information not be retained as well. I think there

         23  are different models of scanners that you buy and

         24  one of them has the software that can retain that

         25  information. But the simpler one does not. But
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          2  again, I think we need to have further discussion

          3  about that. We share your concern about that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Can you answer

          5  this? Is getting the information like that, whether

          6  they retain it or not, is that a violation of civil

          7  liberties just by getting all that information

          8  whether they keep it or not, just by putting the

          9  patron who is innocent and just has come into

         10  socialize. Is that a violation, the practice of it,

         11  the process of itself, whether they keep it or not?

         12                 MS. HYMAN: Well, I believe because

         13  the bar or club owners require to check the ID, this

         14  is an enhance check. But they are still looking at

         15  the same information. It is the driver's license,

         16  the passport --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I understand

         18  that part. But the enhanced check, it is the

         19  enhanced check a violation? Or is that something

         20  that is in accord with civil liberties?

         21                 MS. HYMAN: I believe the check is

         22  certainly --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: The enhanced

         24  check, I'm talking about.

         25                 MS. HYMAN: Yes, because it is already
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          2  allowed under the alcohol beverage control law.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: But not in

          4  this enhanced state or else we wouldn't be having a

          5  law to change anything.

          6                 MS. HYMAN: No, --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Something is

          8  changing. Something different is happening.

          9                 MS. HYMAN: Under the State law, it is

         10  an option to use an ID scanner. Under the local law,

         11  it would be mandatory. But it is the same check.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Do you want to

         13  add something?

         14                 MR. EILER: Councilman, the enhanced

         15  check in this case if we don't store the information

         16  would only be to validate that the ID is legitimate

         17  and that it is not a phony or fake ID. That would be

         18  the only real purpose of the enhanced check or the

         19  ID scanner. That somebody is not using an ID, that's

         20  not real.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: But we just

         22  have no way of knowing how we can assure that it is

         23  not being stored at this point. That's correct?

         24                 MR. EILER: I think that is something

         25  we need to work on further to make sure that nobody
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          2  is installing software to store that information.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: All right. I

          4  just want to say for the record that I support

          5  safety, but not at the risk of our civil liberties

          6  and not at the risk of engaging our people more in

          7  the system. Because we can provide safety without

          8  violating people's human rights to move about freely

          9  and socialize. I guess I'm just under the cloak of

         10  safety and stopping terrorism so much almost

         11  fascistic repression has come to our communities

         12  that I just want to make sure that even in this

         13  case, no matter how small it may appear to be, that

         14  we're not participating in something in the name of

         15  safety to bring on things that is going really

         16  violate our human rights to move about freely

         17  whether socializing or just walking through our

         18  neighborhoods. Which right now, we don't have a

         19  right to do that in our neighborhoods. We have to

         20  get stopped and show ID's whether they have

         21  reasonable cause or not which is a violation. I'm

         22  just checking our freedom since we are suppose to be

         23  free here in America. I just want to make sure that

         24  we stay that way. Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you
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          2  Council Member. Our friend, Council Member Barron is

          3  always for safety. It is rarely for any of the tools

          4  we need to keep us safe.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I just don't

          6  want to go to prison just to be safe.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: But Council

          8  Member, your concerns are our concerns here and we

          9  understand this is a big step. It is not one we take

         10  lightly as you well know, this is an effort lead by

         11  the Speaker well known for her concern for

         12  individual rights. We are absolutely cognizant of

         13  the argument you just made.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm just here

         15  to make sure that we stay that way. Sir, thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         18  Oddo.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Who sets up

         20  these seating arrangements? It really should be

         21  raining somewhere in between Charles and me.

         22  Charles, for the record, I hate those damn fascists

         23  as well. Mr. Chairman, just before I ask a question

         24  of the panel, on the issue of forged ID, just to

         25  tell you a story that was relayed to me within the
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          2  last couple of weeks. Recently there was a death of

          3  a young man under the age of 21 who had on his

          4  person a fake ID and the fake ID was so real and so

          5  good, if you will, that law enforcement and the

          6  authorities almost contacted a family, I think it

          7  was in Long Island and not in my home borough,

          8  because the ID appeared to be genuine. I think your

          9  efforts in that regard are time well spent.

         10                 I have a question on the testimony on

         11  the security cameras portion. The last paragraph and

         12  you say that owners would be required -- your

         13  suggestion would be that owners be required to

         14  certify that the equipment meets all the

         15  requirements and that DCA instead would just conduct

         16  periodic inspections. To me that sounds a lot like

         17  self- certification and this Council has not had a

         18  great experience with self- certification. I'm not

         19  saying establishment owners are any more, any less

         20  reputable than professional engineers and registered

         21  architects. But you have a body in front of you that

         22  is trying to do away with self- certification in

         23  terms of the Building Department. I guess my

         24  question would be twofold. What do you mean by

         25  periodic? How often is periodic? And have you
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          2  contemplated what the punishments would be if when

          3  DCA does do the inspection and finds folks not in

          4  compliance. I think obviously there has to be a

          5  sufficient punishment to instill some accountability

          6  and fear in some folks.

          7                 MR. CONROY: In terms of the periodic

          8  inspection, I don't want to put specific numbers on

          9  it. It would be depending upon the enforcement

         10  judgments in terms of how often or under what

         11  circumstances the inspectors would go into check,

         12  verify that the cameras comply. If I recall,

         13  violations would simply be subject to the violations

         14  of the law that under which this would be imposed.

         15  That's the penalty structure that would apply.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I would just

         17  suggest to both sides that we not make the same

         18  mistake that we've made in terms of professional

         19  certification in housing realm and that without

         20  sufficient audits, our experience has been the

         21  industry realizes that the likelihood of being

         22  caught is practically nill and they take advantage

         23  of it. If the realty is that the DCA doesn't have

         24  the personnel to do these periodic inspections, or

         25  do inspections and we want to go to a self-
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          2  certification, if you will, there has to be

          3  sufficient amount of auditing with sufficient

          4  penalty to really best insure compliance.

          5                 The last question I have is about the

          6  nuisance abatement law and the legislation

          7  contemplated by the Administration. I think it is a

          8  great idea. I often think that we and the Council

          9  don't take advantage of the nuisance abatement law

         10  as fully as we could. My question is, in

         11  contemplating your legislation, is there a limit in

         12  your mind as to how far we can take the nuisance

         13  abatement law and in your opinion, are we under

         14  utilizing it or are there in addition to the

         15  legislation proposed that we should be expanding

         16  under nuisance abatement? Or in your analysis, have

         17  you realized that there is a certain parameter and

         18  we can't go beyond that.

         19                 MS. HYMAN: Well, I think we are

         20  guided by the nuisance abatement law as it exists

         21  now. Our proposal addresses particular situations

         22  which we think aren't addressed or insufficiently

         23  addressed in the nuisance abatement law. About

         24  violence and about specific ABC law violations which

         25  are very difficult to bring without specific
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          2  authority. The one area beyond this bill that we

          3  have identified a need in the nuisance abatement law

          4  for is trade mark counterfeiting. And that is a

          5  separate proposal that we've talked about for a long

          6  time at various points and it has been introduced in

          7  different forms in the Council, to be able to shut

          8  down premises where there is trade mark

          9  counterfeiting or possession of unauthorized

         10  recordings.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         14  Council Member. Just to quickly follow up on

         15  something I said before regarding fake ID's. What is

         16  your policy now regarding the use of fake ID's at

         17  clubs and the potential arrest of kids who are doing

         18  this? Now again, none of us want to see anybody

         19  going to jail for a year for this. But obviously

         20  there needs to be more of a deterrent than there is

         21  now. Again, when I prosecuted for six years, I don't

         22  remember every seeing a fake ID arrest or

         23  prosecuting a fake ID arrest.

         24                 Perhaps that is what needs to be done

         25  now with community service or perhaps some sort of
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          2  arrangement with the clubs that if caught using a

          3  fake ID, they need, you need to bring these kids

          4  down to the precinct until their parents come down

          5  to get them. Is that arrangement being done right

          6  now? What is happening out there with the Police

          7  Department and fake ID's being used at clubs and

          8  what arrangements do you have with the club owners?

          9                 MR. CONROY: We will make arrests for,

         10  especially in our Chelsea initiative when we did our

         11  initiative and that was kind of the biggest step we

         12  took was making an arrest with four people with fake

         13  ID's. And in those cases we worked directly with the

         14  club security when they had stopped somebody who had

         15  identified with fake ID through the use of the

         16  scanners, they would now bring that to our attention

         17  and we would make an arrest. We would also have been

         18  posting variable message signs in the area warning

         19  people that in the use of fake ID would subject you

         20  to arrest. Again, it is a difficult situation

         21  because we're not really looking to put kids in

         22  jail. But we think we have to send a message out

         23  that it is not acceptable to use fake ID.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We will applaud

         25  the Chelsea initiative. And we all obviously reacted
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          2  to the tragic events, but what was happening before

          3  the Chelsea initiative and what's going to be

          4  happening in the future regarding arresting or

          5  taking some action regarding kids with fake ID's.

          6                 MR. CONROY: I think it is something

          7  we need to continue to explore. We do need to

          8  continue to get that message out because it almost

          9  seems to be an acceptable form for kids to use fake

         10  ID's and we need to get a stronger message out. As

         11  you mentioned before, parent responsibility can

         12  hopefully avoid the arrest situation. But if that is

         13  what has to be done to get the message out, then I

         14  think we need to move forward with that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How many arrests

         16  did you make as part of the Chelsea initiative for

         17  fake ID's?

         18                 MR. CONROY: We don't have the number,

         19  but we can get that for you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Do you have some

         21  estimate?

         22                 MR. CONROY: I would rather not

         23  provide an estimate. I will get the exact number for

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. Do you
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          2  know what happened with those cases? Were they full

          3  arrest or were they given desk appearance tickets?

          4  Were they kept in jail? Do you know what happened

          5  with the DA's office?

          6                 MR. CONROY: We kind of went back and

          7  forth. We started giving out summons for it and then

          8  we started making arrests and giving desk appearance

          9  tickets. We also noticed some club establishment had

         10  put some kind of signage in front of their locations

         11  kind of warning what the penalties are for fake ID.

         12  We kind of think that might be a good idea also to

         13  look at something in the future with a sign right

         14  outside the club entrance that clearly indicated

         15  that you would be subject to arrest.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Do you have any

         17  arrangement with different club owners regarding

         18  your policy?

         19                 MR. CONROY: We do it on a case by

         20  case basis where we would be at a club and we would

         21  say this particular time, let us know if you have

         22  any or anyone that shows up with fake ID. We can't

         23  be at every club.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What normally

         25  happens? Do you only make arrest when a club owner

                                                            50

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  calls you and says we are holding three kids here

          3  with fake ID's. Obviously, they can't hold the kids

          4  so how do these arrests happen?

          5                 MR. CONROY: Well, we would be in the

          6  vicinity. We would be right there in the vicinity

          7  particular the Chelsea initiative. The other way we

          8  can do it --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Before you get

         10  to the other way. You are vicinity, what happens?

         11  The bouncer calls you over. You see it happening?

         12  What happens?

         13                 MR. CONROY: Correct. The patron

         14  attempts to get in with the ID. The club security

         15  notifies the police officer who is within a few feet

         16  of that location that here is somebody with fake ID

         17  and we will respond to location and continue to take

         18  the investigation a little further and exam if the

         19  ID is fake or not.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I see the paid

         21  detailed people frantically trying to catch my

         22  attention with their eyes regarding police officers

         23  in location of the clubs. Let's get into that. Why

         24  not? Let's not. Let me get to my fellow Council

         25  Members before I take up time on paid detail. But we
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          2  will, don't worry. You say there was another way.

          3                 MR. CONROY: The other way is when we

          4  are inside of clubs doing inspections and we are

          5  looking for people who appear to be underage that

          6  might be drinking inside a club and we do stop

          7  people at that point and check their ID. We can take

          8  that again to see if that ID is fake or not. For

          9  twofold, to see if the club is serving people who

         10  are underage and/or the patron is using fake ID.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         12  Yassky. First, we've been joined by Council Member

         13  Monserrate and we go to Council Member Yassky for a

         14  question.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

         16  Thank you, Chair Vallone. On the ID scanners, are

         17  these in use now? First of all, good morning, Ms.

         18  Hyman. Good to see you.

         19                 MS. HYMAN: Good morning.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Are these in

         21  use now? Is this here in New York or another cities?

         22  Can you just tell me all about the technology? Do

         23  they work? What do we know about them?

         24                 MR. CONROY: They are in use now. But

         25  it is a voluntary basis. It certainly appears the
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          2  bigger clubs, particularly in Manhattan, are the

          3  ones using it. We don't see it being used in the

          4  outer boroughs. It is the bigger clubs that are

          5  using the --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Have we, the

          7  government, the Police Department or elsewhere in

          8  the government kind of had any experience with them?

          9  Do we think they work? I mean, that they identify,

         10  distinguish between fake and authentic ID's?

         11                 MR. CONROY: We've seen them work. But

         12  in talking even to the people using them that

         13  people, of course, will take a next step in getting

         14  something better. They read the bar code on the

         15  back. That's how they would identify it. The license

         16  would have a bar code on the back. Now some places,

         17  now also who are making faking ID, will now install

         18  a bar code that may possibly fool the scanner.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: It reads a bar

         20  code on the back of a driver's license.

         21                 MR. CONROY: Correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Basically it

         23  would require somebody to have a driver's license.

         24  Is that the idea?

         25                 MR. CONROY: That's pretty much a

                                                            53

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  requirement to get into a club or the SLA law. They

          3  have to show either a valid driver's license or a

          4  military ID or a passport would be the three forms

          5  of ID.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I see.

          7                 MR. CONROY: But the standard ID to

          8  get into a, by the vast majority of people, is a

          9  driver's license.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. I know

         11  zero about this. It reads the bar code and there is

         12  kind of information on it. I'm just looking at my

         13  driver's license. There is information, I guess, on

         14  this bar code that tells a reader that it is in fact

         15  a driver's license and how it hard to duplicate or

         16  it is easy to duplicate?

         17                 MR. CONROY: At this time, we haven't

         18  seen a duplicator. But we anticipate that. That will

         19  be the next step. Our entrepreneurs will make these

         20  fake licenses.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: What do they

         22  cost, the scanners?

         23                 MR. CONROY: Up to about $1,000. Then

         24  there is additional software that you can get that

         25  we have concerns about that would kind of store the
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          2  information which can be used for marketing reasons.

          3  That seems to be the established mailing list which

          4  is what we concerned about that that software is not

          5  utilized.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So a busy club

          7  might need three or four of them for it to be able

          8  to process people going through?

          9                 MR. CONROY: That's correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Have other

         11  cities done this? Are there places that require

         12  scanners or would we be the first as we should be in

         13  everything?

         14                 MR. CONROY: I'm not aware that it is

         15  being used. I would anticipate that it is being

         16  utilized. It is a device that is out there. It is

         17  for sale. So I would anticipate that it is being

         18  used other places.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: On the

         20  security cameras, what does that cost?

         21                 MR. CONROY: I wouldn't have a cost

         22  estimate on that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: When you say

         24  the use of video cameras make sense, you're not

         25  saying it makes sense cost effectively necessarily.
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          2  What do you mean there? How can we say it make sense

          3  without knowing what they cost?

          4                 MS. PETITO: I think it is a

          5  potentially effective law enforcement tool which is

          6  why it would make sense because it would be able to

          7  provide additional evidence as to what happened

          8  outside a club during a given incident during club

          9  operation or at reasonable time after closing.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Do we have a

         11  ballpark of what the cost?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Councilman, we do

         13  have a ballpark on the cost. It costs from $600 to

         14  $1,200. We've been told on an estimate, depending on

         15  the system, for the safety cameras and depending on

         16  the amount of cameras in the installation, that

         17  would be configured by a relationship and that's

         18  some of the part of the discussion where there was

         19  an issue. Sorry to jump in, but there is an issue I

         20  think will be brought up hopefully later in

         21  discussion about where the cameras are placed. Where

         22  the cameras are focused outside the club, looking at

         23  areas outside the club that the police would monitor

         24  or whether the cameras would be focused throughout

         25  the entire establishment. That was one of the
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          2  concerns that we were going to ask about what you

          3  thought would be the most effective locations to

          4  place the safety cameras and the opinion of the

          5  panel.

          6                 MS. PETITO: We believe that there are

          7  some clubs already using security cameras in some

          8  method and I think since this is the first meeting

          9  on these bills that this would be something to

         10  explore as to how to make it feasible for the

         11  smaller club versus the bigger club and what the

         12  expense might be.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Does that

         14  sound accurate to you that for $600 to $1,200 a

         15  cabaret or dance hall could have cameras outside

         16  each entrance and exit? Is that accurate? I guess

         17  that is the initial cost and there is operating

         18  costs beyond?

         19                 MS. HYMAN: I was just going to

         20  mention there would probably be much smaller ongoing

         21  cost regarding the maintenance of the cameras. But

         22  we don't really know.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I don't mean

         24  to interrupt, Mr. Chair, but you are saying that's

         25  per camera, $600 to $1,200. So we are talking maybe
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          2  even if that's correct, okay, whatever. If there is

          3  one entrance and three exits, $4,000 for even the

          4  smallest of places. Okay. Mr. Chair, I heard you

          5  refer to the opportunity for cabarets and dance

          6  halls to take advantage of the program that other

          7  businesses in the City take advantage of to increase

          8  law enforcement presence outside their

          9  establishment. Is that something you are going to

         10  get into? That is something as you know is come up

         11  before here in the Council. What is again your

         12  position on that. I mean there is legislation

         13  pending that would allow nightclubs, bars, to take

         14  advantage of the existing Police Department program

         15  that offers businesses the opportunity to increase

         16  the uniform presence outside their establishments?

         17  What is your position on that?

         18                 MS. HYMAN: We believe that the use of

         19  the paid detail in that manner is contrary to the

         20  ABC law. It is illegal. It would be a misdemeanor

         21  for a police officer to have an indirect or direct

         22  interest in the sale of alcoholic beverages in that

         23  way.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Again, I don't

         25  want to tread over well trod ground here. Last time
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          2  we discussed this here or last time I discussed with

          3  the Police Department here in the hearing room, I

          4  noted that the former Chair of the Alcohol Beverage

          5  Commission had written a letter which I can provide

          6  to you again saying that his interruption it's

          7  almost not contrary to the ABC law. And we also

          8  talked about the fact that paid detail is employed

          9  at establishments that serve beer. I mean sports

         10  arenas, for example. I still don't understand why

         11  that's not an interest in the sale of alcohol and it

         12  would be in this case. Putting that aside even --

         13                 MS. PETITO: I would like to address

         14  that if I could.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Please do.

         16                 MS. PETITO: There is an opinion from

         17  the general counsel of the State Liquor Authority

         18  directly on point which was issued last month that

         19  makes it clear that the use of paid detail would be

         20  illegal. The letter that you are referring to is a

         21  couple of years ago and we at that point disputed

         22  its accuracy and in fact a new opinion issued by the

         23  general counsel of the SLA agrees with our position

         24  on the interruption of the ABC law in that manner.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: May I just jump
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          2  in for one minute, Council Member and Ms. Petito

          3  because I don't agree with what you just said. I

          4  have the opinion in front of me and you sited that

          5  opinion at the Nightlife Summit and I wasn't aware

          6  of that opinion. But I'm going to quote to you from

          7  the opinion right now. In addition, trade

          8  neighborhood associations may if permissible under

          9  local law contract with the police departments to

         10  have on- duty officers provide security for

         11  particular area. Such an agreement should provide

         12  for the Association to reimburse the Department with

         13  no compensation being paid by the Association to the

         14  officers. That being the opinion, why can't we work

         15  out a situation where a Trade Association like the

         16  Nightlife Association pays the Police Department.

         17  The Police Department then pays the police officers

         18  and they patrol an area outside of the clubs.

         19                 MS. PETITO: The critical difference

         20  is the term on- duty. That may be a fruitful area

         21  for us to explore. Paid detail is specifically about

         22  off- duty police officers. That is a different

         23  concept. Finding a funding stream perhaps to pay for

         24  an overtime program for on- duty police officers is

         25  a different concept and one that I think we can talk
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          2  about a little further. But that to us is the

          3  critical difference on- duty versus off- duty.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. So we

          5  found some common ground there. Council Member

          6  Yassky.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes, it is a

          8  semantic difference, but potentially common ground.

          9                 MS. PETITO: We found it to be a very

         10  critical difference.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. If

         12  that's an opening to explore that, maybe we don't

         13  even need to go along the rest of the questioning. I

         14  just wanted to explore the policy, apart from

         15  whether it is legally permissible or not; whether it

         16  is a policy that you would support. Did I hear you

         17  say that if it is considered to be on- duty as

         18  opposed to off- duty, that's a policy that you could

         19  support?

         20                 MS. PETITO: That's a policy that is

         21  different from off- duty and I think that we could

         22  certainly talk further about it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Is the pay the

         24  same? From the officers perspective, they receive

         25  the same pay?
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          2                 MS. PETITO: I believe the net to the

          3  officers is probably similar, yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: My

          5  understanding was paid detail they receive as if

          6  they are working overtime. Okay. Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          9  Council Member. For your information, obviously we

         10  have the Nightlife Association testifying and club

         11  owners like David Rabin from Lotus who already have

         12  cameras and scanners and will be able to answer a

         13  lot more questions about costs and use and things

         14  like that. It is very troubling as you mentioned

         15  that some of this new software would allow the

         16  information to be retained and that's why our bills

         17  would not permit that. But again, we would like to

         18  hear from all parties on that. Council Member --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Chair Vallone,

         20  I'm sorry. Can I ask one additional question?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: One quick one.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: On the

         23  cameras, I saw the concerns raised in the newspaper

         24  about whether there would be a real privacy concern

         25  for nightclubs that cater to a substantially gay and
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          2  lesbian clientele. And that is something that would

          3  be of concern to me; whether people would feel

          4  uncomfortable patronizing a nightclub or a bar that

          5  has a largely gay clientele because they would fear

          6  their image would be captured on a camera. Would you

          7  consider or have you considered providing an

          8  exception for institutions? For allowing a nightclub

          9  to say this is a concern for our clientele and

         10  therefore we would like to be exempt from that

         11  requirement?

         12                 MS. HYMAN: We would not. I don't know

         13  what the Council's general feeling is about it, but

         14  we would not make an exception.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: You are saying

         16  you have considered and you would not support that.

         17                 MS. HYMAN: No, no. This is the first

         18  that we are hearing about it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: You haven't

         20  thought about it. Okay.

         21                 MS. HYMAN: But I do not believe that

         22  we would support such an exception. I think that the

         23  public safety need would be the same. Again, I don't

         24  know, it is the Council's bill, so I'm not sure what

         25  the --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes, the

          3  safety, but the balance may be different. Okay,

          4  thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          6  Council Member. Where were that Commissioner Kelly

          7  has serious reservations about the paid detail bill?

          8  Whenever someone with that background has

          9  reservations, it is something we all are concerned

         10  about. We do want to work with you on this though

         11  and I personally support it also. Council Member

         12  Brewer.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         14  much. Just on the camera situation, I certainly

         15  support them and it came up at the Nightlife Summit.

         16  This is my question. In the last third of security

         17  cameras, Intro 442, I know you talk about, I guess I

         18  would call it self- certification and then DCA will

         19  conduct periodic inspections. Obviously, clubs now

         20  that have cameras are probably those that are large

         21  and feel very strongly about doing it right. When it

         22  is mandated, it is perhaps more of a challenge to be

         23  sure that the law is followed, whatever the days

         24  storage, et cetera is complied with.

         25                 My question is, would you for
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          2  instance have a GIS of where the cameras? How would

          3  a training be done to monitor it, et cetera? Because

          4  s you know, the issue of self- certification in this

          5  body has lots of meanings. We've had so many

          6  discussions on buildings and housing and so on.

          7  Because it is a certain kind of training to be sure

          8  that somebody hasn't pulled the tape, sold it to the

          9  New York Post, et cetera. What are the ways in which

         10  we can be sure that the law is adhered too?

         11                 MR. GEBAUER: I think the concept of

         12  self- certification is that basically the law sets

         13  the requirements for what the cameras are most

         14  satisfied, of what they most do. And then it would

         15  be qualified camera specialist who would then

         16  certify that in fact the installation at the club

         17  conforms to the requirements specified by the

         18  statute. In terms of further exploring the issues

         19  that you are talking about, I think we should

         20  discuss the particulars of how that would be

         21  accomplished to ensure that the goals are all meet

         22  that we have.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: In other

         24  words, what would be the punishment if somebody

         25  didn't remove incorrectly, make the information
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          2  available to those who are not suppose to get it et

          3  cetera. I don't know what a camera specialist is.

          4  But those are the kinds of details that I hope we

          5  can work on together. The same thing, of course,

          6  with regard to scanners, the issue is how do you

          7  prevent materials moving from the machine to the

          8  public. It is a producers glee, promoters glee to

          9  have some information like that. Hopefully, there

         10  are prevention mechanisms.

         11                 The other question I have is on the

         12  State Liquor Authority. I know you didn't mention

         13  them in your testimony unless I missed something,

         14  but in terms of independent monitoring or in

         15  general, how do you coordinate either through the

         16  Mayor's Office, Police Department, Consumer Affairs

         17  with SLA currently? Obviously, I have been promoting

         18  from my first day here having worked with the

         19  community board over the years and so on trying to

         20  get local assistance. The Speaker mentioned that

         21  under the new leadership of the current Chairman, it

         22  is better. But I've always advocated that we need

         23  some local control. My question is, either how do

         24  you work currently with SLA and do you see a

         25  different role for SLA? Are we going to be
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          2  duplicating some of the work that they should be

          3  doing?

          4                 MR. CONROY: Well, certainly over the

          5  last six months has been a dramatic improvement in

          6  our relationship with the SLA. They have been

          7  reaching out to us on a regular basis. We routinely

          8  forward them violations that we observe in clubs or

          9  any enforcement action we take, we send them a

         10  referral report notifying them of a violation that

         11  occurred in a licensed premise. Then we correspond

         12  with them and with problem locations due to their

         13  limit resources, we do try to concentrate on our top

         14  problem locations. We do visits with them jointly.

         15  Inspections of clubs with them jointly and if there

         16  is a particular problem location where we had some

         17  violation, we ask them to take a closer look at the

         18  license of that location to see if everything is

         19  valid and to consider revoking licenses.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Is this

         21  something that is done sort of informally or

         22  formally. In other words, they have a New York

         23  office, they have a Albany main office, so how do

         24  they view coordinated inspections? I mean I

         25  understand that there is more back and forth. I'm
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          2  trying to see if you would feel that there should be

          3  some of the roles that you have had to assume, they

          4  in fact should be doing. Or do you feel like it is a

          5  good melding currently under the new leadership

          6  there.

          7                 MR. CONROY: The new leadership has

          8  made a lot of steps forward. Personnel issues, I'm

          9  sure resources are a concern as is for every agency.

         10  But the relationship has certainly significantly

         11  improved and we think it is working well at this

         12  time.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. Thank

         14  you, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. We

         16  have two more Council Members on the list and then

         17  we are going to go to our clean up hitter which

         18  would be Council Member Comrie who has graciously

         19  deferred to lead in. Council Member Koppell.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes, I'd like

         21  to focus on this video surveillance cameras for a

         22  moment. At present, is there any regulation of video

         23  surveillance cameras in front of all kinds of

         24  premises?

         25                 MR. CONROY: No, we're not aware of
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          2  it.

          3                 MS. PETITO: We're not aware of it.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So if a club

          5  owner today wants to put up a camera and take

          6  photographs of people coming in, they can do so.

          7                 MR. CONROY: That's correct. They can

          8  put up security system.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And they can

         10  keep the film for as long as they want?

         11                 MR. CONROY: That's correct. There is

         12  no requirement that they can't.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right. And

         14  they also don't have to put up a sign that says you

         15  are under surveillance right now.

         16                 MR. CONROY: I'm not aware of any

         17  requirement for that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So the bill

         19  now says that, at the very least the bills says you

         20  have to put up a sign which is a new requirement to

         21  put up a sign.

         22                 MR. CONROY: Correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: If one read

         24  the bill at the first, one would think that this

         25  bill is in fact going further than the current law
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          2  allows, but in fact what this is doing is providing

          3  some restrictions also. I'm a little concerned about

          4  that. I mean I have mixed feelings about it. Because

          5  we don't currently require a grocery store to put up

          6  a sign that says surveillance camera. And many

          7  people have surveillance cameras up now, not just

          8  bars and clubs. I'm not sure that I want to create

          9  new requirements that make it more difficult. I'm

         10  not sure about it. I think it is something that

         11  ought to be explored.

         12                 Furthermore, if the club owner wants

         13   -- maybe we should have a sign. Maybe everybody

         14  should put a sign including a grocery sign. But I

         15  don't see exactly why a club should put a sign, but

         16  not a grocery store or a liquor store for instance.

         17  Maybe a liquor store is a good idea because underage

         18  people going into a liquor store. I mean I think

         19  this has to be carefully thought out because we're

         20  placing new restrictions and not making it easier,

         21  we may be making it harder.

         22                 The other question, I have Mr.

         23  Chairman, and I think this has to be explored is if

         24  we pass this legislation, I realize it says that you

         25  have to keep it for 15 days and maybe it should be
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          2  45 days, but could we imply from that, that the

          3  owner couldn't keep it for longer. I'm not sure I

          4  want to do that because I think there may be good

          5  reasons why the owner might want to keep the film

          6  for longer.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You want me to

          8  clarify that. You are absolutely right. It raises

          9  some very good points and it does say that you

         10  cannot hold for longer than that period of time

         11  which is a serious concern --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But right now

         13  they can hold it for --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: -- Of the club

         15  owners.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It is a

         17  concern of my mine too, Mr. Chairman. I don't

         18  necessarily agree with Council Member Barron. I

         19  think he has expressed some legitimate concerns

         20  about privacy. On the other hand, anybody who is

         21  like me a fan of watching these TV crime shows knows

         22  that very often the pictures on the surveillance

         23  camera are helpful. I assume that is not only true

         24  in the crime shows, but also in law enforcement. Is

         25  that true, Officer that these video surveillance
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          2  films which are much more common now a days have

          3  been used in support of law enforcement?

          4                 MR. CONROY: We consider any kind of

          5  security camera is a very valuable tool for law

          6  enforcement.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right. So,

          8  Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to clarify that. At this

          9  point, I don't have a firm view of it, but I would

         10  be very reluctant to pass legislation that limited

         11  the rights of property owners. Maybe they should

         12  have a sign. Maybe that is a good idea. But

         13  certainly I would oppose saying that a property

         14  owner who felt it was for his own protection or her

         15  own protection to have a security camera and to keep

         16  the films, I would be opposed to stopping that.

         17  Maybe we should consider that they have to be kept

         18  privately; that they are only provided to law

         19  enforcement or pursuant to a subpoena. Those are all

         20  issues. But those are issues that go beyond this

         21  legislation and I just want to be sure that as we

         22  move this along because I think it is a good idea. I

         23  think surveillance cameras at these clubs, don't

         24  misunderstand, is a good idea. But on the other

         25  hand, I don't think I would want this legislation to
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          2  limit what owners currently can do except in ways

          3  that are carefully thought out.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You raised some

          5  very good points from both angles. Number one, the

          6  owners want to keep this for much longer and that is

          7  something they will be discussing. But number two,

          8  by moving into this area, perhaps we protect civil

          9  rights more than they are now where these films can

         10  be used for any purpose basically once they are

         11  taken with no regulation against that. So some very

         12  interesting concerns. We will be looking into it.

         13  And obviously, let me put my two cents in regarding

         14  surveillance cameras, not a week goes by where we

         15  don't see a rapist or someone like that on a

         16  building security camera. Also what happened in

         17  Florida where the little girl is abducted and killed

         18  and the perpetrator was only caught, unfortunately

         19  after she was killed, by a private security camera

         20  outside of a car wash. So other little kids now are

         21  safe from that predator only because of private

         22  security cameras like these. Council Member

         23  Monserrate.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I thank

         25  you, Mr. Chair and I think this has been a very
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          2  spirited Committee hearing and raising a lot of

          3  issues. Chief, I wasn't here earlier, I apologize.

          4  What is your command?

          5                 MR. CONROY: Commanding Office of the

          6  Vice Division.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Of?

          8                 MR. CONROY: The Vice Enforcement

          9  Division.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Vice

         11  Enforcement. I have a basic question because I know

         12  that we have heard a lot of testimony and there is a

         13  lot of movement and we had a Summit and bills have

         14  been proposed. I would like you to take me back a

         15  year or two. Would you say that in general bars,

         16  restaurants, nightclubs are anymore dangerous today

         17  than they were say three years ago? Has there been

         18  an increase? We had two very high profile homicides,

         19  but besides the two high profile homicides and our

         20  hearts go out to their families and to the

         21  survivors, would you say that the nightlife in New

         22  York City is safer today than it has ever been

         23  before? Would that be an incorrect statement?

         24                 MR. CONROY: I think overall that the

         25  New York City is a safe place. We do find, however,
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          2  that clubs are a place where there is potential for

          3  violence at any given time and it really depends on

          4  the type of crowd that is brought in, the

          5  responsibility of ownership, how they run the place.

          6  We had a very violent week just this past weekend in

          7  the clubs and it is very difficult to predict when

          8  this is going to happen. But we had two homicides,

          9  three people stabbed and another person shot just

         10  over this one weekend. There are a spot where

         11  violence does happen and so we have to be mindful of

         12  it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I think we

         14  are all clear on that. I know that there are

         15  nightlife is never a 100 percent predictable place.

         16  But I'm just saying since the Department is so very

         17  good at having stats through the Comstat system, I

         18  was wondering if maybe we could chart that. Is there

         19  anyway to chart that? If you don't have that

         20  information today, maybe it could be forwarded to

         21  this Committee. I think it would be interesting to

         22  see how safe the industry is now in comparison to

         23  the past. I don't know if anyone from one of the

         24  other agencies might be able to offer anything in

         25  addition to that. No? Okay.
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          2                 Let me just go right to my other

          3  direct questions. Let me just say for the record

          4  that I'm actually opposed to the scanners that would

          5  record people's information. Currently, I don't

          6  think there are too many regulations in that this

          7  actual bill would actually add some protection. But

          8  again leaving it to the mercy of the individual

          9  owners, very personal information like date of birth

         10  and address. Could you see the scanners easily being

         11  misused and possibly be used to further crimes like

         12  identity theft?

         13                 MR. CONROY: Councilman, I think that

         14  is a legitimate concern and the Police Commissioner

         15  has specifically kind of expressed that numerous

         16  times that he is very concerned about the misuse of

         17  these scanners. That's why I think it is very

         18  important that they be utilized without being able

         19  to record information on it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: But I

         21  would imagine it would be easy if someone who owned

         22  one of these pieces of equipment could easily record

         23  that and use it even for something as innocuous as

         24  creating a better mailing list or a data base or

         25  that they can continue to promote their business to
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          2  their patrons. Would they not?

          3                 MR. CONROY: It wouldn't be that

          4  difficult.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: All right.

          6  Let me go right to the topic that's really the

          7  underlying topic that we are not talking about which

          8  is police officers doing paid detail. I just want to

          9  be clear. You are saying that the Department would

         10  not be opposed to an overtime detail. Why don't you

         11  repeat to me? I know you have concerns and you have

         12  made a clear distinguish between paid off duty

         13  detail and paid overtime detail. Would the

         14  Department be opposed to a program that would have

         15  officers doing paid overtime?

         16                 MS. PETITO: We're not prepared to

         17  take a position on it. However, it is something that

         18  I believe we can further discuss.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: For the

         20  benefit of my colleagues, can you explain the

         21  difference between paid overtime and the paid

         22  detail?

         23                 MS. PETITO: The employer is

         24  different. In paid detail, it is a particular

         25  employer hiring a particular police officer to work
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          2  off duty but in uniform. The employer is the private

          3  employer. The employer is not the City. If there

          4  were to be an overtime detail of on- duty police

          5  officers, the employer is the City.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right. Let

          7  me just add the following. Having visited many

          8  municipalities and jurisdictions within the United

          9  States where police officers and different agencies

         10  and departments are used inside the establishments,

         11  I for one do not support using police personnel

         12  either off duty or on- duty overtime inside the

         13  establishment. But there is something to be said

         14  about them being outside. The very basic presence or

         15  omnipresence of police officers on the street have a

         16  natural deterrence of crime and criminal activity. I

         17  think that it would go a long way.

         18                 I think that it is a bit

         19  contradictory when we have a City like New York that

         20  allows paid details to be used at sports facilities

         21  like Yankee Stadium and Shea and MSG. Not only do we

         22  have paid detail, but we have on- duty New York City

         23  personnel, hundreds of them working both inside and

         24  outside stadiums and concerts and different types of

         25  sports games and all of those locations, all of
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          2  them, are licensed because they are all selling beer

          3  and alcohol; at least beer and I believe alcohol

          4  also in the suites and so forth. It is ironic to me

          5  that the Department can put both paid detail and on-

          6  duty police personnel, paid for by the public, at

          7  these establishments because they have thousands of

          8  people who are generating the economy. It seems to

          9  me not much different than the thousands of people

         10  who go to nightlife in New York City or in Brooklyn

         11  or in Queens, who are spending hard earned dollars

         12  and generating our economy. But there is a

         13  reluctance by the Department to implement more

         14  resources to those districts that are also a very

         15  important part of our economic engine in this City.

         16                 MS. PETITO: We would respectfully

         17  disagree about the contradictory nature of being

         18  able to use paid detail and on- duty officers at

         19  such venues of sport stadiums and concert halls

         20  because the sale of alcohol is not the core of their

         21  business. Sports events, concerts are the core of

         22  their business and the sale of alcohol is tangential

         23  to that. We believe that the police officer is there

         24  for less likely to be perceived as directly or

         25  indirectly interested in the sale of alcohol.

                                                            79

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  Contrast that with a bar or a club where the sale of

          3  alcohol is intrinsic to the operation of the club or

          4  the bar and that is its main purpose. So I think

          5  that there is a distinction that can be made and

          6  that's why we make that distinction.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I would

          8  then disagree slightly. Because I think a bar's main

          9  purpose probably to sell alcohol; nightclub is

         10  primarily entertainment of which a large portion of

         11  it includes drinking. Some people just like to go

         12  out and dance for a few hours.

         13                 MS. PETITO: Well, I don't know. I

         14  have no percentages in terms of what the revenue of

         15  a nightclub is based on alcohol sales versus

         16  admission or coverage charge. But I would think that

         17  an essential element of the operation of the

         18  nightclub or a dance hall is the sale of alcohol.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I have a

         20  strong suspicion if we took a look at the sales of

         21  alcoholic beverages at sports events, it would be

         22  probably very high up there on the revenue scale if

         23  not surpassing the gated emissions, it would

         24  probably be a close number two. But needless to say,

         25  let must just close by saying the following. When
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          2  you have an area, where it is Chelsea or different

          3  parts of the City, whether it is in Brooklyn or

          4  Queens, areas where there are concentrations because

          5  there are areas where there is concentrations of

          6  nightclubs and bar and you have thousands of people

          7  going to these locations whether they are drinking

          8  or not. I think we also have a responsibility to

          9  ensure safety in general and I just think that

         10  perhaps the Department would be very prudent in

         11  looking at different measures and even if part of

         12  those measures are teaming up with private industry

         13  so that we have an omnipresence in those locations.

         14                 At the end of the day, there is still

         15  thousands of people, whether there is 20,000 people

         16  going into a stadium or 20,000 people going to 20

         17  different locations in a specific area, I think it

         18  would be prudent to have that visibility there

         19  whether whoever is paying for it; whether it is the

         20  Nightlife Association, whether it is the public

         21  dollars in overtime, I think it is prudent to have

         22  more presence. Perhaps we should look at in the

         23  future different formulas to having law enforcement

         24  personnel assigned to where we know there will be

         25  high percentages of people or higher numbers of
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          2  people statistically and with that I'll close. Thank

          3  you very much, Mr. Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          5  Council Member. Let me ask a question that I'm not

          6  positive of the answer to. Doesn't paid detail exist

          7  outside of clubs in other areas of New York State?

          8                 MS. PETITO: I'm only familiar with

          9  our own paid detail program. I know that the concept

         10  exists in other jurisdictions, yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You are quoting

         12  a state law to say that it is illegal. But as far as

         13  I'm aware, it does exists in other areas of New York

         14  State. Either your interruption is up for discussion

         15  or the SAL is allowing illegal activity elsewhere in

         16  New York State. We'll find out more about that from

         17  the Nightlife Association attorney. Council Member

         18  Comrie, who has graciously deferred to the rest of

         19  his colleagues and is going to be our clean up

         20  hitter here this morning as soon as he is done

         21  conferencing.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chair. I want to thank the panel for being patient

         24  this morning and answering all the questions that

         25  have been off the agenda items on paid detail. But

                                                            82

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  since we have opened up that can of worms and you

          3  have been gracious enough to answer all those

          4  questions, I am going to go down that line in a

          5  minute. But I want to get back to the scanners and

          6  the ID cameras. Only in fact that I just want to

          7  kind of clarify my developing position for both the

          8  panel and the public.

          9                 Particularly, the video surveillance,

         10  has the Police Department thought about including

         11  and creating other corridors of video surveillance

         12  on their own in the areas of high activity of

         13  nightlife as they have done in other particular

         14  spots that they thought were safety critical to the

         15  City. Is there any thought about increasing police

         16  monitoring with using video surveillance?

         17                 MS. PETITO: I believe that we have a

         18  very large scale video surveillance program being

         19  established now. I don't believe it concentrates

         20  specifically on nightlife. I believe it is called

         21  Operation Arcus (phonetic). We have testified about

         22  that before the Public Safety Committee in the past

         23  and that's in the process of being implemented. I

         24  believe it is over 500 surveillance cameras that

         25  Police Department cameras that will be deployed.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I would strongly

          3  suggest including some of the known nightlife

          4  corridors or even more important to try and look at

          5  the pathways back and forth between public

          6  transportation and those corridors as a supplement

          7  and as a strong supplement to ensuring the safety of

          8  the patrons as they move back and forth from the

          9  establishments to wherever they are gaining

         10  transportation. I just wanted to make that

         11  suggestion trying to be finding solutions as to

         12  raising other questions today.

         13                 The issue on the storage of tapes, as

         14  Council Member Koppell and Council Member Barron

         15  raised both civil concerns and safety concerns, I'm

         16  still evolving on that particular issue. Do you have

         17  a time for the Police Department tape storage that

         18  you stored those particular tapes for a particular

         19  amount of time?

         20                 MS. PETITO: I believe that the

         21  guidelines are still being developed. I'm not

         22  personally familiar with them for this new

         23  deployment. But we have long experience in the

         24  housing developments with close circuit television

         25  which is a similar -- which is surveillance cameras
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          2  in public areas of housing development. And we have

          3  very specific retention periods and destruction of

          4  tapes after seven day cycles. We reuse the tape

          5  seven times, one day a week that tape is then

          6  changed and then it is destroyed seven days after

          7  the seventh use. I'm sorry if that is confusing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: No, I got it. I

          9  understand it and I would hope that we move the

         10  digital tape because after the seventh day of a

         11  seventh taping on a tape, you are probably losing

         12  grain quality and also the image quality is probably

         13  pretty poor by that time. I think that is something

         14  that hopefully as we move into more digital

         15  opportunity that you are not having to force to be

         16  used -- I forget the name.

         17                 MS. PETITO: Video tape.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Video tape.

         19                 MS. PETITO: Some of our systems, I

         20  believe, are digital.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. Just on a

         22  technical question that I was asked to bring up,

         23  have you appraised our Council staff about your

         24  specific legal concerns about our bills that we

         25  presented to you today and what those specific
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          2  concerns are in a legal type discussion.

          3                 MS. PETITO: I believe that there has

          4  been a legal discussion between your Council and the

          5  Law Department and also the Mayor's office staff. I

          6  just want to reiterate that we are very concerned

          7  with these preemption issues, but that we want to

          8  work with you on all the bills.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: But you have had

         10  a specific detailed discussion on preemption with

         11  our staff and the Council legal staff?

         12                 MS. PETITO: I believe the Law

         13  Department staff has discussed it with your legal

         14  staff, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You are open to

         16  having more discussions around the idea of

         17  preemption --

         18                 MS. PETITO: Yes, yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: -- One way or the

         20  other. Including, if necessary, going to Albany to

         21  do whatever tinkering to make sure that we can get

         22  through this particular problem.

         23                 MS. PETITO: I believe we are fully

         24  committed to discussing it further with you for the

         25  preemption issues and for other issues raised.

                                                            86

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Great, thank you.

          3  We want to be able to get comfortable and with more

          4  discussion to deal with these particular issues. I

          5  don't want to be repetitive, but since you did open

          6  up the door on paid detail and nonpaid detail, there

          7  seems to be another door opening about on- duty

          8  detail. Let me ask you, the process for assigning

          9  the personnel at the stadiums, those are people that

         10  are on- duty that are doing the stadium work, the

         11  Mets stadium, the tennis center, those personnel on-

         12  duty personnel and how are they assigned today.

         13                 MS. PETITO: Well, I think it is

         14  situational, certainly if there is a high profile

         15  game, play off --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Now like the U.S.

         17  Open --

         18                 MS. PETITO: -- A series or the U.S.

         19  Open that requires --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: -- National

         21  yearly event.

         22                 MS. PETITO: -- That requires a major

         23  on- duty presence of police to deal with the traffic

         24  issues, to deal with the congestion and the sheer

         25  number of people. So the Police Department makes the
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          2  right judgments based on the circumstance about

          3  deployment for both stadiums, Yankee Stadium and

          4  Shea stadium, there is a detail assigned for the

          5  summer for the entire season, I should say, at both

          6  Yankee Stadium and Shea Stadium.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: That's part of

          8  the regular Police Department deployment that is

          9  planned and it is worked out with those people and

         10  events and they are all on- duty personnel at the

         11  time. Is that correct?

         12                 MS. PETITO: Yes. The people we deploy

         13  in details are on- duty. I believe one of the

         14  stadiums and forgive me, I don't remember which one,

         15  does also use paid detail officers inside the

         16  stadium.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Inside?

         18                 MS. PETITO: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right. From what

         20  I remember at the Summit, they were not concerned

         21  about inside as much as making sure that the street

         22  safety was and what happened outside the club and

         23  also the transition to transportation modules were

         24  paramount concern to the industry more than the

         25  inside. I'm just focusing from that. If there is a
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          2  concert at Madison Square Garden, that's also given

          3  to the Police Department in advance so that you can

          4  have the on- duty staff outside the facility

          5  monitoring traffic and monitoring the pedestrian

          6  flow. Those people that are outside Madison Square

          7  Garden are on- duty personnel that have been

          8  disbursed within --

          9                 MS. PETITO: As part of their assigned

         10   --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: -- The normal

         12  course of their assignment. Right?

         13                 MS. PETITO: Right. Their assignment

         14  for that day maybe to be in front of Madison Square

         15  Garden. It would be, I believe, case by case

         16  depending on what the event is and what the

         17  potential crowd control issues would be.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: What I'm trying

         19  to get to is there is a mode or a process that could

         20  be detailed and worked out in agreement with the

         21  Police Department, in particular nightlife corridors

         22  and other high traffic, high volume late night

         23  corridors, it is possible to make that part of the

         24  regular deployment creating maybe a bid to handle

         25  the payment directly to the Police Department?
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          2                 MS. PETITO: I think there would

          3  probably be several ways to structure something like

          4  that. The deployment decision would always have to

          5  be within the discretion of the Police Department.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes.

          7                 MS. PETITO: But I believe that

          8  because of the fact that we have had increased

          9  presence in Chelsea now, we see that there is

         10  additional enforcement personnel stationed there

         11  certainly during the weekend evenings. Again, that

         12  is something that we would always need to leave to

         13  our discretion the deployment, but we could

         14  certainly talk about whether or not that could be

         15  supplemented by a different funding stream.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. But if you

         17  had advanced knowledge that you are going to have an

         18  extra 10,000 people on the third Thursday of October

         19  every year for whatever day it is, so many different

         20  days. Let's say it is grandparents late party day

         21  for whatever particular reason and you know you are

         22  going to have an extra 30,000 people in West Chelsea

         23  on the third Thursday of October, then you would be

         24  able to preplan your deployment for that particular

         25  evening. Correct?

                                                            90

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 MS. PETITO: And we would always do

          3  that, yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm trying to get

          5  to the opportunity to actually increase

          6  communication so that we could try to plan those

          7  things in the future. I think you get the gist of

          8  where I'm heading with this as another opportunity

          9  to try to make sure we have enough police personnel

         10  to ensure safety and security along with the other

         11  issues to ensure that people can have their

         12  opportunities to enjoy nightlife which is a major

         13  economic generator for our City as well. With that I

         14  won't belabor it. I would appreciate again to the

         15  panel all of your diligence and patience and

         16  answering all the questions this morning. I see, Ms.

         17  Hyman, has a follow- up.

         18                 MS. HYMAN: I just would like to thank

         19  you again for having us here today, all of the

         20  panelists. And to echo what Ms. Petito said from the

         21  Police Department, on our end, that we are very

         22  supportive of these bills and look forward to

         23  working together to hammer out the details together.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I saw
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          2  Commissioner Feinblatt walked by. Maybe we can run

          3  through all this again. Actually, I just found out

          4  that we have another hearing at 1:00 here and we do

          5  need to run through this as quickly as possible.

          6  Council Member Addabbo has joined us and that means

          7  you can now go because we were just waiting on him

          8  to say hi. But again, not to belabor the goodbye,

          9  because we are in a rush. But thank you all and we

         10  look forward to working with you.

         11                 MS. HYMAN: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The next panel

         13  will be the Nightlife Association represented by

         14  Robert Bookman, David Rabin, and Charles Hunt from

         15  the New York State Restaurant Association.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Gentlemen, we

         17  didn't realize that we had to be out of here at 1:00

         18  and we don't limit you, but we want you try to be as

         19  concise and intelligent and focused as you normally

         20  are without all of the unnecessary hyper ball to get

         21  right to the meat of the matter. I know that is

         22  unfair. You were promised more time and we'll do our

         23  best to get the salient points. I know you are

         24  pointing at Mr. Bookman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I take issue
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          2  with you the description of Robert Bookman is

          3  concise.

          4                 MR. BOOKMAN: I thought you were going

          5  to take issue with the hyper ball comment.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Well, whoever

          7  would like to go first.

          8                 MR. BOOKMAN: Robert Bookman, Council

          9  to the New York Nightlife Association. I'll dispense

         10  with all the normal thank you and just get right to

         11  the meat. In general, the New York Nightlife

         12  Association feels that the legislation, the various

         13  pieces of legislation while motivated, the

         14  Association believes that all the measures need some

         15  changes. Some need some refocused and some cases, a

         16  bit counterproductive for many of the reasons that

         17  were raised here. But I do really want to thank the

         18  two Chairs for reaching out to us and speaking to us

         19  about this and to Speaker Quinn and the Summit was

         20  great and there really should be more of them.

         21                 Intro 440, independent monitors.

         22  Again, we are in full support of the concept of this

         23  bill, but feels that it needs to be much more

         24  narrowly targeted to those establishments that have

         25  clearly demonstrated inability to comply with
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          2  serious City laws. The current intro is much too

          3  broadly worded. It provides much too much

          4  discretion, lacks specifics as to the kinds of

          5  violations that could lead to the need to designate

          6  a monitor. The City's regulatory structure itself

          7  lends itself too easily to minor fines and

          8  violations that could unless this proposal is

          9  clarified lead to the designation of an otherwise

         10  lawful business as a "bad operator."

         11                 The danger that this measure can be

         12  abused in that way needs to be carefully monitored

         13  in the final version of the bill. I know your intent

         14  is to deal with safety issues, but there is nothing

         15  in this bill which would prevent sanitation tickets

         16  or insignificant noise violation out on the street

         17  being the cause for a monitor. Moreover, other types

         18  of specifics that it lacks that a lawyer's eye looks

         19  at is it contains no due process procedure whereby

         20  DCA will make this determination.

         21                 It does not specify that only guilty

         22  determinations will be considered as opposed to the

         23  mere issuance of summonses that are later dismissed.

         24  It does not specify the parameters of the monitors

         25  authority; how long will the monitor last? More
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          2  importantly, under what circumstances will the

          3  monitor end. Moreover, it seems to allow for the

          4  Police Department to still pursue and then we hear

          5  today expand nuisance abatement cases, at the same

          6  time theoretically resulting in a duplication of

          7  enforcement that perhaps two monitors needing to be

          8  placed at the same location simultaneously. So these

          9  are all issues that I think on the monitor bill

         10  needs to be addressed.

         11                 ID Scanners. NYNA feels that

         12  mandating the use of this equipment should follow

         13  the designation of a club as a problem establishment

         14  rather than all establishments be required to have

         15  this equipment. Businesses that have operated

         16  without incidents for years should not have to be

         17  compelled to use scanning devices. That being said,

         18  it is important to emphasize that the use of this

         19  equipment is no panacea to the ability of determined

         20  underage drinkers to flout the law. As was discussed

         21  today, scanners can be beaten, increasingly more

         22  sophisticated fake ID's are being developed to beat

         23  the scanners and unless the City and State crack

         24  down hard on the manufacturer and use of fake ID's,

         25  this measure will fall far short of its stated
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          2  goals.

          3                 In addition, NYNA is opposed to the

          4  section of this law that says that clubs cannot

          5  record vital statistics of those people whose ID's

          6  we do scan. We believe that this is a direct

          7  violation of the State law preempting the section of

          8  the law and would also deprive us of an important

          9  affirmative defense if challenged on the person's

         10  scan. Let me be a little more specific on this. The

         11  State law encourages liquor license now to use

         12  scanners and it provides for an affirmative defense

         13  that if you are served a violation for serving an

         14  underage drinker and you have the scanners and you

         15  used the scanners, and you could prove that you used

         16  it in that particular circumstance, then you have an

         17  affirmative defense. Meaning a fake ID was used to

         18  beat a scanner.

         19                 The law says that a way to prove that

         20  you used it, not that it was "normal business

         21  practice to use it," but that it was used in that

         22  circumstance was to use a scanner that does record

         23  all of that information. The State law specifically

         24  says what type of information can be recorded and

         25  stored; the name of the person, the driver's license
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          2  number, date of birth, all of that information.

          3  Because in realty and there are a number of court

          4  cases that establish that, normal business practice

          5  won't do at the liquor authority. By telling us that

          6  we cannot, it affirmably removes the defense that is

          7  allowed for us in State law directly contradicts it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That affirmative

          9  defense is written where?

         10                 MR. BOOKMAN: It is in Section 65- b

         11  and 65- 4 of the ABC law.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Because it would

         13  seem like, I don't doubt what you say is true, but

         14  if they pulled in that area where we are preempted

         15  from that specific area and probably would not be

         16  able to mandate that it not be held, obviously it is

         17  something our Counsel will be looking into.

         18                 MR. BOOKMAN: That's my point. I think

         19  on that section -- I do want to give a couple of

         20  real life situations about the importance of

         21  maintaining this information. Because what happens

         22  often, you said as six years as a prosecutor, you

         23  never prosecuted use of fake ID or possession of a

         24  fake ID. And I'll tell you why. Because until the

         25  recent Chelsea initiative, they didn't care about
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          2  fake ID's. We would confiscate tons of them. We

          3  obviously have no legal authority to hold people. If

          4  there was a cop around on a rare circumstance and we

          5  called him over, they would say don't bother us with

          6  this type of stuff. We're interested in serious

          7  issues.

          8                 There was an incident just a few

          9  months ago in a place in your district in Queens, a

         10  place in which the police came in and actually was

         11  considered a problem establishment, they came in,

         12  scanners were in use there. They asked a few people

         13  as the police officer said here, who appeared to be

         14  underage for their ID's. Well, guess what? The

         15  underage person who got in using the fake ID, likely

         16  a college student, is not stupid and they are not

         17  going to tell the cop, oh, I get in using a fake ID.

         18  So what they say is, I'm underage, they didn't check

         19  my ID. They just let me in.

         20                 Now the scanner will prove that we

         21  did scan him and that they use a sophisticated fake

         22  ID that beat the scanner. But I have never seen a

         23  cop say to one of those people, empty out of your

         24  pockets. I want to do a reasonable search. You have

         25  admitted that you are underage. You are holding a
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          2  beer. You are therefore in violation of the law by

          3  possession of alcohol. You have conceded you are

          4  underage. There is more than probable cause there to

          5  do a search, let's see what you've got in your

          6  pockets. That's why you never prosecuted such a

          7  case.

          8                 Video surveillance cameras. While we

          9  don't feel that cameras act as an effective

         10  deterrent, we seem we to be in the minority there

         11  where we are aware that the Council is determined to

         12  go forward with this measure. Since it is imperative

         13  that clubs be allowed to maintain their records for

         14  as long as they deem fit in order to defend

         15  themselves against the he said, we said claims and

         16  frivolous law suits, we have a serious problem with

         17  sections of the law which limits what we do now with

         18  those clubs that use security cameras as former

         19  Attorney General Council Member Koppell raised here

         20  today.

         21                 Without disability, many businesses

         22  simply will be unable to get insurance and we can't

         23  say it more clearly, however, that cameras again

         24  without police officers don't really do much except

         25  after the fact. I have sent up in my testimony an
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          2  attached letter from Global Coverage, a major

          3  insurance broker, to the nightlife industry and I

          4  forwarded them a copy of this bill. It is the Vice

          5  President, it is their opinion that if the bill is

          6  passed as is, "as a consequence, we believe that

          7  this provision of the legislation that does not

          8  allow us to retain the security photos, will

          9  ultimately have a detrimental impact on the

         10  availability and premiums for liability insurance

         11  for nightclubs, in what is already a very restricted

         12  and costly environment."

         13                 What I think this bill needs to do is

         14  restrict or limit what we can do with that

         15  information that we record. Create some privacy

         16  limitations in there. Don't allow us to release it

         17  to the New York Post. Just picking on the Post,

         18  because that was what was picked on before. I guess

         19  the Daily News we can release it to, but not the

         20  Post. But don't limit where we could record or what

         21  we could do with those recordings. As long as it is

         22  for how long we can keep it, as long as it is for

         23  legitimate liability or law enforcement purposes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: If we had to put

         25  a limit in there for insurance purposes, how long
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          2  would it be? Is it three years?

          3                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, it is statute of

          4  limitations on three years on trip and falls or

          5  accusations that one of our bouncers assaulted

          6  someone. And we get a letter six months later from a

          7  lawyer in New Jersey saying pay up or we are going

          8  to sue you because your security guys pummelled our

          9  client and we go back to that tape. Because we often

         10  we will keep that tape. We don't always keep all the

         11  tapes and David can be more specific. But when our

         12  security guys tell us we had a loud person or person

         13  we didn't allow in because they were intoxicated, we

         14  will keep that night. More often than not, the tapes

         15  will show that what we had was an intoxicated person

         16  who we didn't allow in and we firmly told him to

         17  leave and when we tell them we have the tape and

         18  that is what it shows, those cases disappear. You

         19  can't take that right away from us.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I know this

         21  doesn't solve all of your problems, because somebody

         22  could be completely making up an incident, but what

         23  if we put an exception to hold the tape that you had

         24  some sort of reasonable cause to believe there might

         25  be an incident to arise out of.
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          2                 MR. BOOKMAN: The problem is most

          3  clubs who do use security normally keep all tapes

          4  for six months. Special tapes they keep thereafter.

          5  Anything less than six months we think at a minimum

          6  for the normal course of business because most

          7  claims will show up within that period of time. But

          8  we need to keep those that we have targeted for

          9  particular concern that night. The police came in,

         10  whatever, for longer.

         11                 MR. RABIN: If I may Rob, Chairperson,

         12  the majority of these letters that we get from

         13  lawyers --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Please identify

         15  yourself.

         16                 MR. RABIN: I'm sorry. David Rabin,

         17  co- owner of Lotus, President of Nightlife

         18  Association. The majority of these letters that we

         19  get from lawyers about slip and falls and stuff are

         20  total surprises. There is no reason that we held the

         21  tape for that night. We get a letter six months

         22  later saying my client fell down the steps and we're

         23  like, they did? We had no idea. We go back, check

         24  the date, look at all the cameras. Lotus has 36

         25  cameras in place at this time all throughout the
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          2  building just for this cause really, just for this

          3  issue.

          4                 MR. BOOKMAN: I want to point out a

          5  couple of other points that came up in the

          6  Administration's testimony. The monitors that are

          7  often stipulated too as part of the nuisance

          8  abatement actions always require us to maintain not

          9  only these tapes because the nuisance abatement

         10  action settlement is generally install security

         11  cameras, install ID scanners and maintain those

         12  records. The monitor requires us to maintain those

         13  records for their purposes, yet to check on us.

         14  Moreover, I know I went off the security cameras,

         15  there is one other point I want to talk about on the

         16  ID scanners; actually two points on the ID scanners.

         17  Not every one walks around at night in the City of

         18  New York with legally acceptable photo ID. What was

         19  stated earlier is that you must have a legally

         20  acceptable photo ID to get into the club is not the

         21  law as I'm sure we all know. You don't need any ID

         22  to get into anywhere except perhaps City Hall and

         23  that's not the law. That is a matter of your policy.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What was the

         25  Chief quoting then when he said it had to be a
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          2  driver's license, a passport?

          3                 MR. BOOKMAN: What he was quoting is

          4  what is legally acceptable ID for to prove your age

          5  for purposes of being served alcohol, not to get

          6  into an establishment. Moreover, there is no legal

          7  requirement that you have ID in order to be served

          8  alcohol. I hate to always pick on Chuck on these

          9  situations, but I don't need under the law to ask

         10  Chuck Hunt for ID or your Mom or my Mom to serve

         11  them alcohol. This ID scanner bill, the way you have

         12  it worded seems to imply that we do. But what the

         13  law is that we are at our own risk if we serve

         14  somebody who is under 21. We need to rely to a

         15  certain extent on licensed lawful multi- million

         16  dollar businesses to protect their businesses.

         17                 If David Wright and Jose Reyes after

         18  the next two nights winning the national

         19  championship choose to come to Lotus to celebrate,

         20  we know that they are under 30, but over 21. It is a

         21  matter of public record. Famous people do go out at

         22  night. Are we under this bill to tell them they

         23  can't come in because they didn't bring their ID's

         24  with them because they are under 30 years old and

         25  appear to be under 30 years of old? That's what your
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          2  bill says. Your bill says that if someone appears to

          3  be under 30, they have to have ID and we have to

          4  scan it. That's ludicrous in the hospitality City of

          5  the world.

          6                 Moreover, we have 45 million tourists

          7  that visited New York City last year. Fully half of

          8  them according to NYC and Company stated that going

          9  out to New York City's restaurants, bars and clubs

         10  is one of the reason why they came to New York and

         11  we hope to increase that to 50 million. They

         12  certainly don't go out at night with a New York

         13  State driver's license because they don't have one.

         14  They have a passport which they are encouraged to

         15  leave locked in the hotel and not walk around the

         16  City with it. It is a huge damage to our tourist

         17  industry if you require us to have legally

         18  acceptable photo ID in order for people to get into

         19  our establishments. That's the last thing I want to

         20  say on the ID scanners.

         21                 As to employee training, NYNA

         22  completely supports the concept of employee

         23  training. Chuck will talk more about the type of

         24  training program that we are involved with now. We

         25  do believe that the available classes are limited
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          2  and we will need more time for an effective date for

          3  this law to go into effect so that there will be

          4  plenty of time to train everybody and get them

          5  certified or needs to be trained. As for the

          6  security staff portion of the bill, we also agree

          7  with the Administration that your preempted from

          8  adding an additional requirement to a licensed

          9  security guard. If they are licensed, they are

         10  licensed.

         11                 We get our licensed security guards

         12  from licensed security guard companies. If you want

         13  them to have mandatory alcohol awareness training

         14  that needs to be part of their state license, we

         15  can't be cross- examining licensed security guards

         16  once they show us their license as to whether they

         17  also have alcohol training or not. I think the law

         18  is pretty clear on that.

         19                 We also don't see the need as stated

         20  in the law to retrain everybody in the industry

         21  every two years unless some new laws come into

         22  effect. Then perhaps like a pocket part in a bill,

         23  in laws there will be a refresher, but if nothing is

         24  changed about alcohol awareness and nothing in the

         25  law is changed, I don't see the need that everybody
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          2  needs to go through retraining every two years.

          3                 Last but not least, it was raised by

          4  one of the Council Members here today, I think it

          5  was Councilman Yassky about what the cost of all

          6  this is. It is not insignificant. The good quality

          7  scanners, even the ones where the current web site

          8  is saying they can beat because they do as the

          9  police officer here, as the Chief said, the new web

         10  sites are saying that they are coming out with ID

         11  cards with holograms, with bar codes.

         12                 The story I shared with you, both

         13  Chairs, that was on CNN where an individual to prove

         14  how good these were got a fake ID on the web and

         15  went into Homeland Security in Washington with a

         16  fake ID and got into the building. I guess Brownie

         17  wasn't doing such a good job after all. I lost my

         18  train of thought.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Concise,

         20  concise.

         21                 MR. BOOKMAN: All right. Concise.

         22  Wrapping it up. Oh yes, the cost. The good equipment

         23  is expensive. The video cameras as Dave will testify

         24  too is quite a bit more expensive than was apprised

         25  by the police officer representative. We feel if you

                                                            107

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  are going to put these requirements on businesses,

          3  on all businesses in a category, licensed cabarets,

          4  whether they have been licensed for ten years or 30

          5  years without a single violation ever been issued,

          6  you need to do something to help defray those costs.

          7  We need a little tax saving and we have an idea for

          8  you. It won't completely cover it, but it will be a

          9  sign of partnership between our businesses.

         10                 One of the last miscellaneous

         11  business taxes that the City of New York imposes on

         12  business is a 25 percent franchise surtax on the

         13  liquor license. So whatever the liquor license fee

         14  is and as it is, the Liquor Authority charges us 25

         15  percent more for having the privilege of the liquor

         16  license in New York City versus Westchester or Long

         17  Island. The City adds an additional 25 percent on

         18  top of that. So it comes out to about $500 or $550 a

         19  year. We're talking about 250 licensed cabarets, it

         20  is a $100,000 or so added to City budget, but it

         21  would really be helpful if you repealed that

         22  franchise tax just like the vol (phonetic) tax was

         23  repealed, just like the commercial rent tax as

         24  appealed, for those licensed cabarets that are

         25  required to spend thousands of dollars on this
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          2  equipment. It would help cover the cost. Thank you

          3  very much. That was pretty concise I thought.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Mr. Hunt, are

          5  you going to be testifying also?

          6                 MR. HUNT: Yes, just briefly if I may.

          7  I'm Chuck Hunt. I'm the Executive Vice President of

          8  the New York State Restaurant Association. I'll try

          9  to be brief. I just want to point out that the New

         10  York Nightlife Association as of December of last

         11  year actually became a chapter of the New York State

         12  Restaurant Association and because of the

         13  commonality of the issues that effect our industry,

         14  we feel that gives us a stronger voice.

         15                 You have heard from my colleague, Mr.

         16  Bookman, of our industry's position on these four

         17  Intros being introduced today. Our restaurant people

         18  totally concur with his remarks. I would just like

         19  to amplify a couple of things. We recognize that

         20  much of this legislation is specifically addressed

         21  towards establishments with cabaret permits and will

         22  not affect the average restaurant. However, I wish

         23  to point out that there are significant number of

         24  restaurants in the City that have been granted

         25  cabaret licenses that we feel that do not fit into
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          2  the nightlife profile. Some examples are Tavern on

          3  the Green, Sardi's, the Rainbow Room and similar

          4  restaurants and other types of operations like

          5  caterers. The legislation should clearly state that

          6  these types of operations should not be required to

          7  have ID scanners or video surveillance cameras.

          8                 I do want to be a little more lengthy

          9  in respect to employee training. Our association has

         10  been offering training in the responsible service of

         11  alcohol for many years. Currently, a class for

         12  servers and managers, Serve Safe Alcohol, is offered

         13  to our members on a monthly basis. The curriculum

         14  for this class has been developed by the National

         15  Restaurant Association Educational Foundation and

         16  has been fully approved by the New York State Liquor

         17  Authority. The class includes seven hours of

         18  instruction using a work book which I have brought a

         19  copy with me to show you. It also includes five

         20  different videos and concludes with a written

         21  examination.

         22                 After successful completion of the

         23  course, each participant is issued a qualifying

         24  certificate in the responsible service of alcohol.

         25  The course includes four sections. Alcohol and your
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          2  responsibility during which we point out the

          3  responsibilities of the seller, the responsibilities

          4  of the manager, the responsibilities of the

          5  corporation in respect to liability, both civil and

          6  criminal in the service of alcohol. We tell them the

          7  law of the Liquor Authority. We get into great

          8  detail of the laws restricting alcohol service;

          9  particularly service to minors.

         10                 The second section is recognizing and

         11  preventing intoxication. We show them the path of

         12  alcohol through the body. We explain what blood

         13  alcohol content is and how it affects and what the

         14  legal limits are for blood alcohol content in

         15  respect to who is intoxicated and who isn't. We show

         16  them ways to prevent guests from becoming

         17  intoxicated in our establishments.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Mr. Hunt, you

         19  have got a bunch of things you teach in your course

         20  in your prepared testimony. We have it. If you could

         21  just move on maybe.

         22                 MR. HUNT: Okay. Checking ID's. We

         23  spend a lot of time on that. And handling difficult

         24  situations. How to tell someone that you cannot

         25  serve them anymore alcohol and do it in a way that
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          2  doesn't provoke bad behavior on their part. As I

          3  say, these are all supported by examples and videos.

          4  Our association is prepared to offer additional

          5  classes as may be required to make the course

          6  available to the nightlife industry. That's about it

          7  for me. I wish to thank the Committee for the

          8  opportunity to speak to you and I will be glad to

          9  take any questions after Mr. Rabin.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We just want to

         11  let you know Mr. Hunt that the law does exclude any

         12  establishment that operates primarily as a

         13  restaurant during all hours of operation. The

         14  establishments you named would be excluded from this

         15  law.

         16                 MR. BOOKMAN: Our only problem with

         17  that is we think you should not leave that to

         18  regulations which could get watered down later. But

         19  you should clarify in the legislation while you have

         20  control over this what is a restaurant. And the

         21  other thing we think the legislation should be

         22  amended to state that any Serve Safe Alcohol class

         23  already approved by the State Liquor Authority

         24  statewide is automatically one of the acceptable

         25  classes in the City of New York so we don't have

                                                            112

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  different standards.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Mr. Rabin.

          4                 MR. RABIN: Thank you. I did see page

          5  six today, Peter. I have to say that I'm not sure if

          6  this keeps up in all honesty that we will continue

          7  to have the best nightlife in the world in New York

          8  City.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Which one do you

         10  own in Vegas? You own a club in Vegas?

         11                 MR. RABIN: We have a little bar in

         12  the Venetian V Bar.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Next time we

         14  will head there.

         15                 MR. RABIN: Okay. I came here in a

         16  good mood today because the Speaker and the Chairs

         17  and the Council people have been really reasonable

         18  and great with us, very open minded in discussions

         19  back and forth on these topics. But at risk of my

         20  own business, once again, I'm nevertheless going to

         21  say that the Administration and NYPD never cease to

         22  disappoint. Their stridency and hypocrisy is just

         23  flabbergasting to me time and time again. I was

         24  reading an article today about another topic and the

         25  quote in the article was a total different topic,
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          2  but one of the gentlemen said in the article was,

          3  often when there is a problem in the world,

          4  government doesn't correct, it over corrects. I

          5  wonder if that is not the direction we're going in

          6  today.

          7                 It is a great exaggeration to label

          8  New York nightlife as drastically unsafe. There are

          9  65 million entrances a year. There have been some

         10  incidents in the last year that have been terrible.

         11  But there are 65 million entrances a year and that's

         12  a 2003 number. I do want to remind the Council and

         13  everyone in this room that in the unfortunate and

         14  horrible case of Jennifer Moore, she was not taken

         15  from a nightclub; although no one will disagree that

         16  she was drinking in a nightclub. She was taken from

         17  an unlight and unpoliced tow pound on 12th Avenue

         18  and 38th Street. Whereas she shouldn't have been

         19  drinking in a club, we don't have much to do with

         20  the fact that there is no cops outside an unlight

         21  tow pound on 38th and 12th.

         22                 I mostly want to discuss the reality

         23  of running a business like ours in New York. We are

         24  in a catch 22 situation because of the NYPD

         25  mentality with regard to disorderly premises and
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          2  nothing is more frightening for me to sit here as a

          3  business owner and hear it discussed that there is

          4  going to be new standards for nuisance abatement

          5  actions based on disorderly premise tickets when we

          6  get disorderly premise tickets just for calling 911.

          7  It is the most counter- intuitive thing I have ever

          8  heard in my life. Why on earth would I ever call the

          9  police ever again if I'm risking my entire business

         10  to call the police to ask for assistance? I'll never

         11  do it. You just basically, NYPD has come in here and

         12  said well let's make City less safe.

         13                 We get tickets even for smokers in

         14  the street because someone calls 311 a hundred times

         15  a night because the streets are noisy. We didn't

         16  come up with the smoking ban. We can't call the cops

         17  to say we have some noisy smokers in the street, can

         18  you help us, because we will get a disorderly

         19  premise ticket and we don't know who is making the

         20  calls because the calls are anonymous. I don't know

         21  how we are suppose to do this, but maybe someone in

         22  this room is brighter than I am on this topic.

         23                 I want to know if MSG and Yankee

         24  Stadium get summonses when there are fights or at

         25  Yankee games. I want to know that. I would also love
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          2  to know what percentage of their sales are alcohol

          3  because they do sell hard alcohol there. It is not

          4  just beer. All those private suites have vodka and

          5  every other substance that we serve and I don't

          6  believe the police one bit that if you told Dolan

          7  and Steinbrenner and Wilpon that they couldn't sell

          8  alcohol tomorrow that they would be like, oh that's

          9  not big deal. It is incidental to our business. Not

         10  a chance.

         11                 Sorry. But I'm pretty incensed right

         12  now. Councilman Barron made some very great points.

         13  I'm sorry he is not here at this time. I am married

         14  to a person of color, and her family has very, very

         15  much been put through the system and I went through

         16  it with them. However, the reality is that the video

         17  tape situation is all about litigation, as we have

         18  discussed, and I don't want to belabor it, as is the

         19  ID situation with cops saying well you let in a

         20  person without ID; how can I show them that I did ID

         21  them if I can't record the fact that they came in

         22  and I can't show them that record?  It doesn't make

         23  any sense. Why would I ID them? I might as well not

         24  ID them if I can't show it to anybody. Why should I

         25  spend thousands of dollars on the machines?
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          2                 Where is the discussion in this room

          3  of an overall change in NYPD's philosophy of working

          4  with a $10 billion industry instead as opposed to us

          5  in a gotcha situation? There was discussion of why

          6  NYPD feels it is necessary to deploy officers when

          7  thousands of people leave sporting events or leave

          8  the U.S. Open. Well, thousands of people walk out in

          9  the meat packing district at 4:00 a.m. thousands of

         10  people walking up and down the lower east side.

         11  Thousands of people are walking on 27th Street, but

         12  NYPD doesn't feel the need to deploy officers there

         13  other than on horseback in the most threatening

         14  manner possible with kleig (phonetic) lights

         15  everywhere. It is absurd that they don't look at it

         16  the same way, same people spending money as Council

         17  Monserrate said to New York City and yet we're

         18  looked at as criminals and they are looked at as

         19  Yankees. Sorry.

         20                 The spokesperson for Feinblatt's

         21  office discussing the idea of further use of

         22  nuisance abatement law really almost made me tear

         23  what's left of my hair out. There are so many

         24  demonstrable cases of the nusiance abatement law

         25  being abused via ex parte proceedings where once a
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          2  judge sees on a Monday that after they have closed

          3  the place on a Friday night, they actually get it

          4  pointed out to them how inaccurate the court papers

          5  were that got them to close the place, they reopen

          6  it on Monday miraculously. Now if the place was

          7  really that much of a threat to society, would a

          8  judge really risk their entire future by reopening a

          9  place only 48 hours later? No they wouldn't if they

         10  really thought this was one of the most dangerous

         11  places in all the world, they would never reopen it

         12  on Monday. But they almost always reopen on Monday

         13  because they know what they were shown ex parte on

         14  Thursday is a bunch of bull.

         15                 They close it Friday and Saturday

         16  night. They cost the place almost a quarter of their

         17  revenue and more importantly, honestly, they cost

         18  all the waiters, all the bartenders, all the

         19  barbacks, all the busboys, all the bathroom

         20  attendants all their earnings. And those people live

         21  week to week. It is done in the most punitive,

         22  punitive fashion possible. You tell me what public

         23  service is served by when the task force or 15 cops

         24  go into Balthazor (phonetic) at 10:00 p.m., how is

         25  New York served by having all the patrons of
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          2  Balthazor subjected to the task force at 10:00 p.m.?

          3  I have to be honest. Rob and Chuck were very

          4  rational here. I'm not being very rational right now

          5  and I admit it. But if you guys, not you guys,

          6  because I have to say that what the Council has

          7  proposed is workable.

          8                 But if what I heard from this panel

          9  previously here goes into effect, I'll be the first

         10  one to tell all my legitimate colleagues in our

         11  business that they should look elsewhere to open

         12  further places and New York will be left with rotten

         13  apples who are what is called churn and burn

         14  artists. They come in, they open for 18 months

         15  because they know they are going to violated and

         16  after 18 months, they move to a new location and

         17  they burn out that location. And then they move to

         18  another location. But if you want people who are

         19  here who invest millions of dollars who are going to

         20  stay here for eight to ten years, employ hundreds of

         21  people, contribute millions of dollars of taxes, you

         22  have to work with them, not against them.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We have many

         24  questions and I'm going to not ask any only because

         25  I want to get to the other panels. I know the NYCLU
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          2  is waiting around and we have a panel after that. We

          3  have been joined by Gennaro. Councilman Comrie, do

          4  you want to ask some questions?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: No. In the

          6  essence of time, we'll move forward and in the

          7  lighter fact that this is the first hearing. I know

          8  that Council Member Yassky had one question, one

          9  question that you wanted to -- you had a burning

         10  issue that you had to talk about right now.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: No, I can

         12  defer -- well, I will ask the one question which is

         13  about the cost. Because I share your concern about

         14  over regulation. The Mayor yesterday signed a bill,

         15  the Council passed that eliminated a whole bunch of

         16  regulations. At that the time, I'm sure sounded like

         17  they were important; things like tour guides have to

         18  get a certificate of good health from the City of

         19  Health, but that just cost people money and don't

         20  really accomplish anything or accomplish a tiny bit.

         21  So on the cameras, what is your estimate of what it

         22  would cost to comply with this bill?

         23                 MR. RABIN: You know while we were

         24  sitting here and I text message my DM and tried to

         25  get -- it's tough to know. We started with video and
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          2  we moved to these DVD things. They estimate that to

          3  start from scratch to have a system like ours which

          4  is not just a front door, but it is the entire

          5  premise. It would be $30,000.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: But to comply

          7  with this bill --

          8                 MR. RABIN: Extrapolating out, I would

          9  probably say it is under $10,000. But I wouldn't --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I guess rather

         11  than ask, what I would like is could you at some

         12  point supply to the Committee the industry estimate

         13  for what this would cost the industry?

         14                 MR. RABIN: Sure.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. One quick

         16  question. Independent monitors, you had a lot to say

         17  about when they become into place. But the way we

         18  understand it, it is lieu of revocation. If you have

         19  fruit fly violations and you have got 30 of them or

         20  something like that and they want to close you down,

         21  then the monitors coming in, in lieu of the

         22  revocation. So why would you be concerned when the

         23  monitor can come into play?

         24                 MR. BOOKMAN: The monitor, in the real

         25  world, you are not getting your license revoked for
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          2  sanitation ticket or fruit fly. No agency has every

          3  done that nor would it be upheld as reasonable by a

          4  court. But this regulation doesn't seem to clarify

          5  that you could not be required to have a monitor for

          6  a sanitation ticket and a fruit fly. The monitors

          7  are extraordinarily expensive. There is very few

          8  that the Police Department approve and they are

          9  expensive. I mean they are extremely expensive to

         10  the point where it is burdensome.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The intent in

         12  lieu of revocation is we will try to reword that to

         13  deal with those concerns. I don't want you think

         14  that just because we are not asking questions, we

         15  don't understand your concerns. We absolutely do and

         16  we would like to sit down with you at length as we

         17  have in the past again to go through this and come

         18  up with changes that you can live with.

         19                 MR. BOOKMAN: Okay. The main thing on

         20  the monitors, there needs to be a due process

         21  proceeding in which you have an opportunity to be

         22  heard and present evidence and cross- examine

         23  witnesses. The conclusion of which, an ALJ may

         24  determine that we found you based on whatever

         25  standards are created to be a bad operator and
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          2  require a monitor, not just a letter that comes in

          3  the mail from the Commissioner of Consumer Affairs

          4  saying, you deem to be a bad operator, get a

          5  monitor.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: One of the list

          7  of questions I have for you is would a due process

          8  hearing help.

          9                 MR. BOOKMAN: Absolutely.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We understand

         11  your concerns and we do want to sit down with you. I

         12  just want to get to everybody else.

         13                 MR. BOOKMAN: Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, the

         15  three of you for waiting all morning. We look

         16  forward to working with all of you to make this law

         17  even more workable. Thank you, Mr. Rabin. I'll see

         18  you in Vegas.

         19                 MR. RABIN: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I just want to

         21  echo those concerns as we really want to make sure

         22  that you have the ability to maintain your

         23  operations and not be overharrassed in this process.

         24                 MR. BOOKMAN: Let alone create an

         25  environment where maybe an industry could actually
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          2  grow.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The next panel

          5  will be Donna Lieberman and Robert Perry from the

          6  NYCLU. Ms. Lieberman, how long do you think the

          7  testimony is going to be?

          8                 MS. LIEBERMAN: Oh, we like it when

          9  you ask us that way. What do we need five, ten

         10  minutes? We can do five.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You can do five?

         12                 MS. LIEBERMAN: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, thank you.

         14  You can begin whenever you like.

         15                 MS. LIEBERMAN: My name is Donna

         16  Lieberman. I'm the Director of the New York Civil

         17  Liberties Union and with me is Robert Perry who is

         18  the Legislative Director of the NYCLU. I want to

         19  thank you for conducting this hearing and inviting

         20  us to testify. I also would like to express our

         21  appreciation and acknowledge that the Speaker had

         22  asked us to give out input into this legislation

         23  before it was or as it was in the drafting stage.

         24  That doesn't get our sign off, but we appreciate

         25  having the input.
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          2                 The proposed legislation raises

          3  important questions of public policy regarding the

          4  effectiveness of a whole range of initiatives to

          5  enhance public safety. Some of the questions it

          6  raises are, does the use of video surveillance

          7  cameras actually deter crime? Do video surveillance

          8  cameras provide greater public safety protection

          9  than the deployment say of police or private

         10  security professionals? What are the relative costs

         11  and benefits of deploying trained security

         12  professionals as compared with video technology? And

         13  will legislation mandating the installation of video

         14  technology have the effect of shifting resources

         15  from the employment of security personnel to the

         16  installation and maintenance of video surveillance

         17  technology? And would this shifting of resources

         18  provide optimum value for each security dollar

         19  spent?

         20                 We believe that these questions have

         21  not been given the serious consideration that they

         22  require. And absent the information that would be

         23  gleamed from serious consideration of these, there

         24  is simply no way to determine whether or not the

         25  proposed legislation will accomplish the proposed
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          2  and purported safety objectives. We all share the

          3  safety objectives, of course.

          4                 As to one critical question, does the

          5  use of video surveillance cameras deter crime? That

          6  answer is pretty clear. We don't know. While

          7  surveillance images may assist us in criminal

          8  investigations after the fact, there is a dearth of

          9  evidence that video surveillance actually prevents

         10  or deters crime. A British study in 2002 found the

         11  presence of closed circuit TV surveillance in London

         12  had little or no effect on crime in public

         13  transportation or city centers and had no effect on

         14  violent crimes.

         15                 Of five studies conducted in American

         16  cities including two in New York City, not a single

         17  one found a reduction in crime attributable to video

         18  surveillance. Much as we might like to assume that

         19  video surveillance would deter crime, there is no

         20  real evidence that it does that and no study has

         21  been done to document that that would happen in the

         22  event of the enactment of this proposed legislation.

         23  Whatever the public safety rationale for mandating

         24  the use of video surveillance cameras, there is an

         25  equally compelling interest that the City Council
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          2  must take into account and that's the civil

          3  liberties of New Yorkers.

          4                 The interest involves the protection

          5  of personal privacy, freedom of speech and

          6  association, as well as due process of law. The

          7  proliferation of video surveillance technology

          8  implicates our personal freedom in the most

          9  intimate, and yes, most public sense. It is our view

         10  that the proposed legislation, as drafted, will

         11  seriously compromise that freedom.

         12                 It is often been said and Council

         13  Member Vallone has said it many times, so I'll

         14  acknowledge that even if he is not here at the

         15  moment, that we have no expectation of privacy when

         16  we are out in public. But this rationale reflects a

         17  highly circumscribed notion of what personal privacy

         18  is. It also reflects a limited understanding of the

         19  sophistication of current video surveillance

         20  technology.

         21                 A couple of examples that we all know

         22  about reveal this. For example, the Police

         23  Department has archived hundreds if not thousands of

         24  hours of surveillance images captured during the

         25  2004 Republican Convention. Some of these, many of
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          2  these, in fact the lion share of these, documented

          3  protected First Amendment activity. And according to

          4  the New York Times, there is an unofficial archive

          5  of police videotapes that was still in effect four

          6  months after the Republic Convention.

          7                 Another example is the Police

          8  Department videotape of a suicide that tragically

          9  occurred in the Morris Houses in the Bronx a couple

         10  of years ago, and found its way onto an Internet

         11  site devoted to pornography and violence. We have

         12  asked time and time again whether anybody was every

         13  held accountable for that disaster and we still have

         14  not gotten an answer from the Police Department or

         15  anybody else.

         16                 A WABC Eyewitness News investigation

         17  of the Police Department's VIPER unit featured

         18  Council Member Monserrate, documenting his own

         19  experience in the VIPER unit and reporting observing

         20  police officers in the VIPER unit engaging in video

         21  voyeurism; peering into the apartments of public

         22  housing residents and focusing their cameras on

         23  women. He also told the reporters that in terms of

         24  the security of those video tapes, well they were

         25  out on a shelf with absolutely no safeguards
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          2  whatsoever.

          3                 The problem we have, of course, is

          4  that people who engage in lawful political protest

          5  could end up on a video watch list maintained by the

          6  New York Police Department; that highly sensitive

          7  personal conduct can easily be turned into images

          8  stored in a video archive and that conduct that one

          9  may reasonably expect to be private is easily

         10  captured on videotape and distributed at warp speed

         11  to the farthest reaches of the Internet. And now Bob

         12  is going to talk about specifics of these bills.

         13                 MR. PERRY: Let me try to address just

         14  two discrete points in the legislation. I have

         15  spoken with Chris Quinn staff and Liz Dubin

         16  (phonetic) about these. The concerns about rights

         17  and liberties are not hypothetical. They are quite

         18  real and there is considerable documentation. But

         19  let me just speak to how we think the bills as

         20  framed will not protect against these types of

         21  abuses.

         22                 Intro 442 includes a provision that

         23  is intended to protect against these types of

         24  problems. However, the proscriptions are framed so

         25  vaguely that there will be few really, as a
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          2  practical matter, any restraints upon the way the

          3  video images may be used. For example, the rationale

          4  here is for the distribution or the dissemination is

          5  furtherance of a law enforcement or training

          6  purpose. This is a highly nebulous sort of standard.

          7  What's more, once a cabaret or dance hall turns over

          8  a tape to an agency or the Department, there are no

          9  time constraints upon how long those images may be

         10  retained nor are there constraints aside from the

         11  law enforcement justification upon how those images

         12  are used or disseminated after transfer to an

         13  agency, the Police Department, Consumer Affairs,

         14  Department of Buildings, nor do the audit procedures

         15  from the bill address the disposition of video

         16  images after a club has handed those images over to

         17  an agency.

         18                 Let me give you a hypo. A police

         19  officer directs the club operator to retain or hand

         20  over video images. Is that a per say law enforcement

         21  justification? Is the club owner required or

         22  compelled to produce the images? I suspect he would.

         23  Who will determine when this law enforcement purpose

         24  arises? In most instances, probably law enforcement.

         25  It is therefore not difficult and especially in
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          2  light of some of the examples that Donna has just

          3  referred too, to imagine the nature of the law

          4  enforcement purpose that could lead the NYPD to

          5  direct a nightclub to turn over video images.

          6                 For example, monitoring individuals

          7  who patronize clubs in a neighborhood that falls

          8  within the NYPD zone designated as an impact area;

          9  an impact zone. Or the archiving of images of

         10  cabaret patrons pursuant to an investigation of

         11  noise or crowd levels; or the video surveilling of

         12  individuals who patronize political events sponsored

         13  by a cabaret or club. Again, I think these are not

         14  fetched. We have got many examples of these types of

         15  behavior and they would easily fall into what might

         16  be considered a law enforcement justification for

         17  obtaining these images.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We have four

         19  people to testify in ten minutes. I would love to

         20  hear this, but we have to keep it as quick as

         21  possible to let them to be able to talk.

         22                 MR. PERRY: I'll close then with the

         23  ID scanner piece. Because I think again here, there

         24  is an expectation that the bill provides for a

         25  constraint upon the use of the scanners or the
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          2  dissemination of recording information. However, all

          3  the bill does is speak to using scanners that record

          4  or attain personal identifiers. There was a

          5  discussion earlier about what the capabilities of

          6  this technology is; whether you can actually

          7  purchase a scanner that does not store or provide

          8  for dissemination. The constraint needs to be put on

          9  the owner or operator not to retain or distribute;

         10  otherwise, I think the constraint is meaningless.

         11                 In any case, we have outlined a

         12  number of other provisions that we think need to be

         13  addressed. We have proposed amending language. We

         14  would love to work with you to try to incorporate

         15  those into the bill.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We're trying to

         17  figure out ways that we would like to work with you

         18  on this to perhaps to prevent the distribution, but

         19  perhaps allow the retention. So your expertise might

         20  be very needed in that area. So Liz Dubin who you

         21  spoken to is here and she will contacting you. Ms.

         22  Lieberman, I'm sure you and I are going to debate

         23  security cameras over and over. I'm sure the kids in

         24  Florida who haven't been raped and killed because

         25  the killer was caught on a video camera would
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          2  disagree as to whether video cameras deter crimes in

          3  addition to catch criminals. Because that guy is not

          4  committing anymore crime. But we have done it

          5  before, we'll do it again. We just don't have time

          6  today. I would love to debate one day with you on

          7  security cameras. We do value your input regarding

          8  this and we will be working with you.

          9                 MR. PERRY: Just a point. We do not

         10  have an ideologically opposition to cameras per say.

         11  I think you should understand that. I mean they

         12  clearly do have a crime investigation function. But

         13  the civil liberties susceptibility and

         14  vulnerabilities are quite real.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We absolutely

         16  agree. We don't take this step lightly. Again, we

         17  have people --

         18                 MR. PERRY: I understand.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: -- Who need to

         20  testify.

         21                 MR. PERRY: We will desist.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Very quickly

         23  because I know time is of the essence. Donna, is

         24  there some examples where cameras can meet civil

         25  liberties specifications be it a deterrent in crime.
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          2  I too am concerned. But I am wondering if there is.

          3  I don't need a long answer because I know you have

          4  talked with the staff. But are there some examples?

          5                 MR. PERRY: We have actually done a

          6  quite detailed analysis of the bill that lays out

          7  ways we think the abuses can be protected against.

          8  We would be glad to follow up with you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Did you submit

         10  that to us or is that part of the testimony?

         11                 MR. PERRY: It's in the testimony.

         12                 MS. LIEBERMAN: It is part of our

         13  testimony. And this is a --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: The acceptable

         15  usage you said are part of the testimony or it is

         16  just a response to the particular bill.

         17                 MR. PERRY: There are two questions.

         18  The threshold question is whether this is a good

         19  allocation of resources to actually secure public

         20  safety. The issue came up earlier of cops versus

         21  cameras. It is a real issue. I don't think it has

         22  been thoroughly addressed. Secondly, if you are

         23  going to proceed, there are a range of things you

         24  can do to protect against the inappropriate use of

         25  these image --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: That was my

          3  question.

          4                 MR. PERRY: There area ways, yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And you have

          6  detailed that to us here.

          7                 MR. PERRY: With proposed ways, yes,

          8  to further narrow and frame the constraints.

          9                 MS. LIEBERMAN: And these are concerns

         10  that arise yes, in this context with regard to the

         11  bars and nightclubs, but they arise in a much

         12  broader array of context and we think that this

         13  conversation needs to be brought into those other

         14  contexts as well.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And I know you

         16  are more than willing to sit with our legal staff to

         17  keep ferreting out all the legal ramifications of

         18  your particular view point. Is that correct?

         19                 MS. LIEBERMAN: Absolutely. We are

         20  happy to work with them.

         21                 MR. PERRY: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you both

         24  for sitting through all the testimony and listening

         25  before you testified and waiting all day. I'm sorry
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          2  we had to rush you. The last few people to testify

          3  are going to get two minutes each. I'm going to call

          4  you all together. Michele Vigeant from Safe

          5  Horizons; John McGarvey, Metropolis In Motion; I'm

          6  not sure if there are other names on that card or

          7  not; Ralph Warren, Public Space for All; and Sym

          8  Hogue from N.E.C. Security Consultants, Inc. I guess

          9  there were some other names on that card.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We are under a

         11  very serious time constraint. I hate to have to give

         12  you guys two minutes, but we really don't have a

         13  choice. So whoever would like to go first. You have

         14  two minutes to make your presentation. The light has

         15  to be off in order for the mic to work. It is

         16  counter intuitive.

         17                 MR. WARREN: Ralph Warren. I'll try to

         18  be quick as possible. Obviously, I could talk for

         19  about an hour on this topic because I have been

         20  dealing with it for about seven years since living

         21  in Seattle from New York --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Could you

         23  identify your organization?

         24                 MR. WARREN: Well, I'll guess we make

         25  our organization, Public Space for All is our
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          2  website. But we will make it our organization.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Public Space for

          4  All.

          5                 MR. WARREN: Yes. I have been dealing

          6  with these issues in Seattle. We dealt with things

          7  on an ad hoc basis of getting citizens together on a

          8  issue that was very similar that dealt with use of

          9  clubs and all sorts of venues for electronic/music

         10  specifically. Basically, I would just say to

         11  emphasize that I tried for a month to get invited as

         12  well as other people did, for a month to the

         13  Nightlife Summit and we were not allowed access. It

         14  is disappointing to see that we don't have the

         15  opportunity to bring as much information as we could

         16  to the table today and I certainly would like to

         17  know going forward how we can get people here.

         18  Because I know people are grumbling about this for

         19  the past two months.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: This is just the

         21  first hearing and we will probably have another ex

         22  parte Summit to discuss it. I don't know why you

         23  were not able to be at the Summit. Maybe it was

         24  limited due to space and we had such an overwhelming

         25  response. But we will make sure that you have an
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          2  opportunity to have a much fuller presentation.

          3                 MR. WARREN: Okay. So the key point is

          4  that I would like to present it from the standpoint

          5  that it is not the civil liberties issue that are

          6  primary, it is actually that the approaches here are

          7  going to undermine public safety. They will

          8  undermine public safety by undermining privacy and

          9  trust and I have a bunch of research that can back

         10  it up. But it will be stronger in terms of the other

         11  issues that they pointed out, in terms of the data.

         12  Okay. I guess I would say that the important thing

         13  is to frame it, in the very little time I have, I

         14  would say the important thing is to frame it in

         15  terms of not just the industry's point of view.

         16                 Although I am very sympathetic to

         17  what they said. Not just the industry's point of

         18  view, but the public at large and take it on a more

         19  political level to be honest is that at a minimum,

         20  the thing that came out to me that I heard today

         21  that will certainly resonate for people is the ID

         22  theft issue. That's one thing that is definitely at

         23  risk, that many people not just young adults, will

         24  identify with as a problem with this bill as well as

         25  the surveillance in clubs.
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          2                 One question I have going forward

          3  would be, how far does it actually extend? How

          4  easily can it be extended? So right now it pertains

          5  the cabaret laws. But I have gone out to electronic

          6  music events for 13 years. Since I have been back in

          7  New York about four years, I have gone out once a

          8  month. I have never gone out to the mega clubs. I

          9  don't prefer them. But is this going to be extended

         10  to PS1? Is it going to be extended to small off

         11  parties? What are you going with this?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. Thank you.

         13  Next person.

         14                 MS. VIGEANT: Good morning or good

         15  afternoon. My name is Michele Vigeant. I'm with Safe

         16  Horizon. Safe Horizon is represented here today to

         17  support several pieces of legislation regarding

         18  nightlife safety. As a victim assistance

         19  organization, we see the devastating impact of

         20  violence on the life of New Yorkers each and every

         21  day. The mission of Safe Horizon is to provide

         22  support, prevent violence, promote justice for

         23  victims of crime and abuse, their families and

         24  communities. Therefore, supporting efforts that seek

         25  to increase the safety of people in New York is
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          2  critical to our mission.

          3                 One in six American women has been

          4  the victim of an attempted or completed rape and

          5  approximately 90 percent of all sexual assault

          6  victims are women. About 44 percent of rape victims

          7  are under age 18; 80 percent are under age 30, with

          8  12 to 34 being the highest risk years for sexual

          9  assault. Alcohol remains the most commonly used

         10  substance in crimes of sexual assault. This is

         11  mainly because alcohol is easily accessible and is

         12  used in social interactions. Considering the

         13  statistics about sexual assault and the connection

         14  between sex crimes and alcohol, it is necessary that

         15  we seek ways to increase the safety for young women

         16  who are socializing in bars and clubs throughout New

         17  York City.

         18                 The effects of alcohol increases

         19  one's vulnerability in many ways, reducing the

         20  ability to protect yourself, impairing judgment,

         21  making it difficult to handle or avoid conflict and

         22  assess danger and making it difficult to assess

         23  limits. In sexual assault crimes, the majority of

         24  offenders are someone known to the victim and it is

         25  very common for victims to be drinking alcohol and
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          2  socializing with the perpetrator in the moment right

          3  before the assault. Sexual predators take advantage

          4  of the victims' vulnerability and trust. Therefore,

          5  these risk factors suggests that bars and clubs are

          6  the precise setting where we must take action to try

          7  to increase the safety for patrons, specifically

          8  young women.

          9                 Expanding the training for employees

         10  in bars and clubs to include identification of when

         11  someone is intoxicated and/or when a person is

         12  underage and the appropriate interventions to take

         13  in these situations is one step towards increasing

         14  safety. It is critical for these trainings to

         15  address the violent crime of sexual assault,

         16  including prevalence, facts, tactics of sexual

         17  predators and alcohol as a risk factor. Educating

         18  employees from this perspective will increase

         19  awareness and assist them in identifying situations

         20  as potentially dangerous. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you. I was

         22  going to give you the last line, but thank you for

         23  stopping.

         24                 MS. VIGEANT: Oh, I had a few more

         25  lines. But that's okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Next person.

          3                 MR. MCGARVEY: Good afternoon. I'm

          4  John McGarvey and we represent Metropolis in Motion,

          5  a growing grassroots coalition composed of dancers,

          6  dance groups, small nightclubs, and voters from all

          7  five boroughs who --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Is that the

          9  shirt that says dancing is not a crime?

         10                 MR. MCGARVEY: That's correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: If you haven't

         12  seen Leroy dance, you might have to --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Hey, hey, hey.

         14  I'm disco child. I can get busy for all of a minute.

         15                 MR. MCGARVEY: Metropolis in Motion

         16  seeks to have the redundant cabaret law repealed by

         17  working with the City Council or through a

         18  successful appeal from our upcoming court case with

         19  Norman Siegel and Paul Chevigny. Our concern as an

         20  organization is a deep criminalization of dance. We

         21  fear that the way these amendments are be to placed

         22  into the existing cabaret law, it will make that

         23  more difficult. I would like to turn it over to

         24  Stefanie Jones for additional comment.

         25                 MS. JONES: Hi, my name is Stefanie
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          2  Jones. I'm also with Metropolis in Motion. And I

          3  just want to reiterate that we are working to remove

          4  the restrictions on dance in New York City. Thank

          5  you all for staying this long. I think it is very

          6  encouraging that the City Council is working with

          7  the Nightlife industry on these issues. It is very

          8  good that is being finally brought to the table. I

          9  need we need to hear more from the voices of the

         10  patrons who are using these nightclubs. I think that

         11  is a very important element that has not yet been

         12  brought into your discussion. I look forward to our

         13  group being able to provide that to you.

         14                 For one, the main issue for us is how

         15  these restrictions will connect to the restrictions

         16  on dance. I know Council Member Vallone's concern

         17  about fake ID's overlaps with the fact that there

         18  aren't that many places to dance in the City,

         19  especially for these under 21. We want to look

         20  forward to working with the Council on these

         21  nightlife issues and we especially look forward to

         22  hopefully removing the restrictions on dance in the

         23  City.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Part of what

         25  came up at the Nightclub Summit and I don't know if
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          2  you were there was the fact that the reason for many

          3  of the problems that are happening right is the fact

          4  that there is no where else for people from 18 to 21

          5  or 16 to 21 to go and that's something we're

          6  discussing.

          7                 MS. JONES: Exactly. We're just

          8  concerned that these nightlife restrictions might

          9  make it harder to expand that to our areas.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Just so you know,

         11  we are aware that there was a segment of the public

         12  that was not represented at the first Summit and we

         13  do intend to try and work that out. In fact, my

         14  staff reminded me that we really need to sit down to

         15  make sure that we do not scare away young people

         16  from the City. We want to make this the safest City

         17  in the world for all parties to be involved. We are

         18  figuring out a way to make that particular

         19  discussion happen as well outside of our hearing

         20  opportunity. There is no point in creating a

         21  situation that we wind up having underground or

         22  raves, I think they call them. I'm starting to show

         23  my age because I haven't been to one. Clearly, the

         24  need to dance and the need to enjoy yourself in the

         25  City needs to be held as something to be keep and to
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          2  be encouraged; not be discouraged by this. We are

          3  aware of it and I want to thank you for being here.

          4  I do like to dance, Council Member Vallone. I just

          5  don't get the opportunity that much anymore.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I didn't say you

          7  didn't like to dance.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Sym, have you

         10  testified yet?

         11                 MR. HOGUE: My name is Sym Hogue. I am

         12  from N.E.C. Security Consultants, Inc. First of all,

         13  I would like to welcome all the attention and

         14  reformation for the public safety in nightlife

         15  industry and we welcome Peter Vallone, Jr. Thank you

         16  very much. Real quick, one I guess the proposal

         17  about the cameras we definitely advocate that and it

         18  is definitely a benefit. A benefit pretty much to

         19  police agencies of our great State and our great

         20  City. In other words, a crime already has been

         21  committed and then they are called in for an

         22  investigation and they use the cameras in the

         23  judicial system pretty much for them; presence needs

         24  to be there. That's what we are here for to create a

         25  presence. Fortunately you have people like David
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          2  Rabin who is a paramount proprietor and the

          3  nightlife establishment --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: When you say we,

          5  just for people who don't know.

          6                 MR. HOGUE: We are a security

          7  personnel. That what's I mean. Security personnel,

          8  that's what I do. I'm licensed and bonded, insured

          9  company that people like I said, David Rabin, who

         10  like I said is paramount industry has enough

         11  security presence. That's one of the biggest issues

         12  is security presence. We are here as a deterrent in

         13  this presence. Then you wouldn't have a lot of these

         14  issues that have occurred.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes, that was

         16  everybody. Again, sorry to be brief and compressed,

         17  your issues are really paramount and we need to

         18  flush them out in a lot more detail. But as you can

         19  see, the people for the next hearing for Housing and

         20  Buildings which we both sit on are here and we

         21  unfortunately are going to have to shut down the

         22  meeting at this particular time. I just want to take

         23  the opportunity really to commend Council Member

         24  Vallone and his staff for all of their great work

         25  working with my staff to deal with this issue. And
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          2  Speaker Quinn again for her diligence and her ground

          3  breaking efforts to make sure we have a higher level

          4  of communication on all of these particular issues.

          5  With that, I will leave it to Council Member Vallone

          6  to close out.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Likewise, I

          8  would like to thank you and Tom Ferrugia and Liz

          9  Dubin, all the work they have done behind the scenes

         10  to make this hearing to come to fruition. People are

         11  waiting for the hearing room, so thank you all for

         12  staying here through the extent of this hearing. We

         13  look forward to working with everyone as this

         14  process evolves and continues. We will be able to

         15  keep this City safe and keep our nightlife thriving.

         16  Thank you. Meeting adjourned.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 1:04 p.m.)
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